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HEALTH REFORM IN THE 21ST CENTURY:
PROPOSALS TO REFORM THE HEALTH SYSTEM

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 24, 2009

U.S. House of Representatives,
Committee on Ways and Means,
Washington, DC.

The Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:09 a.m., in
room 1100, Longworth House Office Building, Hon. Charles B.
Rangel (Chairman of the Committee), presiding.

[The advisory announcing the hearing follows:]

ADVISORY

FROM THE
COMMITTEE
ON WAYS

AND
MEANS

CONTACT: (202) 225-3
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
June 24, 2009
Chairman Rangel Announces a Hearing on
Health Reform in the 21st Century:
Proposals To Reform the Health System
House Ways and Means Chairman Charles B. Rangel (D-NY) announced
today that the Committee will hold a hearing to examine proposals to
reform the health system. This is the sixth hearing in the series on
health reform in the 111th Congress. The hearing will take place at
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9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, June 24, 2009, in the main Committee hearing
room, 1100 Longworth House Office Building.

In view of the limited time available to hear witnesses, oral
testimony at this hearing will be from the invited witnesses only.
However, any individual or organization not scheduled for an oral
appearance may submit a written statement for consideration by the
Committee and for inclusion in the printed record of the hearing.

BACKGROUND:

Rising health costs threaten access for the 250 million people with
insurance and undermine the competitiveness of American companies. In
addition, nearly 46 million people lack coverage today and millions
more have coverage that fails to meet their needs. A reformed health
system must build on what works in our current system to expand access,
while minimizing disruption for people who have coverage and helping to
slow the rise in health costs. Recent studies have indicated that half
of all bankruptcies are the result of serious illness and medical debt,
and many of these families have coverage.

The Committee has held five health reform hearings this year to
examine the current state of various parts of the health system. These
hearings build upon hearings and legislation that the Committee has
undertaken in previous Congresses. Among other topics, these hearings
have highlighted the need to improve the way care is delivered and the
problems with the current insurance market. The hearings also stressed
the importance of the employer-based system of health insurance and the
need to improve and strengthen current programs like Medicare and
Medicaid.

The Committee has worked with the Committee on Energy and Commerce
and the Committee on Education and Labor to develop a proposal that
reflects President Obama's health reform principles and will begin to
rein in rising health care costs, protect current coverage, preserve
choice of doctors, hospitals and health plans and ensure affordable,
quality health care for all.

In the coming days, this discussion draft health reform proposal
will be released. This hearing will focus on that proposal as well as
other proposals to reform the health system.

““We have an historic opportunity to reform our Nation's health
care system, building on what works and fixing what is broken to reduce
health care costs, protect current coverage and preserve choice for
patients to guarantee affordable, quality care for all,'' said Chairman
Charles B. Rangel. " "Health reform is critical to America's economic
recovery and I look forward to feedback from Members and witnesses so
we can continue working to make this goal a reality.''

FOCUS OF THE HEARING:

The focus of the hearing will be on the forthcoming proposal
developed by the Committees on Ways and Means, Energy and Commerce and
Education and Labor and other proposals to reform the health system.

DETAILS FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS:

Please Note: Any person(s) and/or organization(s) wishing to submit
for the hearing record must follow the appropriate link on the hearing
page of the Committee website and complete the informational forms.
From the Committee homepage, http://democrats.waysandmeans.house.gov,
select ~“Committee Hearings.'' Select the hearing for which you would
like to submit, and click on the link entitled, " "Click here to provide
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a submission for the record.'' Once you have followed the online
instructions, complete all informational forms and click "~ “submit'' on
the final page. ATTACH your submission as a Word or WordPerfect
document, in compliance with the formatting requirements listed below,
by close of business Wednesday, July 8, 2009. Finally, please note that
due to the change in House mail policy, the U.S. Capitol Police will
refuse sealed-package deliveries to all House Office Buildings. For
questions, or if you encounter technical problems, please call (202)
225-1721.

FORMATTING REQUIREMENTS:

The Committee relies on electronic submissions for printing the
official hearing record. As always, submissions will be included in the
record according to the discretion of the Committee. The Committee will
not alter the content of your submission, but we reserve the right to
format it according to our guidelines. Any submission provided to the
Committee by a witness, any supplementary materials submitted for the
printed record, and any written comments in response to a request for
written comments must conform to the guidelines listed below. Any
submission or supplementary item not in compliance with these
guidelines will not be printed, but will be maintained in the Committee
files for review and use by the Committee.

1. All submissions and supplementary materials must be provided in
Word or WordPerfect format and MUST NOT exceed a total of 10 pages,
including attachments. Witnesses and submitters are advised that the
Committee relies on electronic submissions for printing the official
hearing record.

2. Copies of whole documents submitted as exhibit material will not
be accepted for printing. Instead, exhibit material should be
referenced and quoted or paraphrased. All exhibit material not meeting
these specifications will be maintained in the Committee files for
review and use by the Committee.

3. All submissions must include a list of all clients, persons,
and/or organizations on whose behalf the witness appears. A
supplemental sheet must accompany each submission listing the name,
company, address, telephone and fax numbers of each witness.

Note: All Committee advisories and news releases are available on
the World Wide Web at http://democrats.waysandmeans.house.gov.

The Committee seeks to make its facilities accessible to persons
with disabilities. If you are in need of special accommodations, please
call 202-225-1721 or 202-226-3411 TDD/TTY in advance of the event (four
business days notice is requested). Questions with regard to special
accommodation needs in general (including availability of Committee
materials in alternative formats) may be directed to the Committee as
noted above.

Chairman RANGEL. The Committee on Ways and Means will come
to order as we begin, I guess, our ninth hearing on health
reform. I want to thank the staffs, minority and majority, for
bringing us to this point in our Nation's history where we do
see light at the end of the tunnel for one of the most serious
domestic problems our great Nation has faced.

It is abundantly clear that we have a serious financial
problem as the cost of health care escalates far beyond our
imagination, and continues in this upward spiral. We have a
moral obligation in terms of the number of people who have lost
their homes, gone into bankruptcy as a result of the costs of
providing health care. And of course, we have a crisis in terms
of the waste and inefficiency and the misuse of our resources
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by health providers that find us in need of changing the entire
system.

We hope at the end of the day that we are able to say that
those people who find that their insurance meets their needs,
that they should rest assured that we have enough problems
without interfering with the relationship they have with
private health insurers.

They will have to be able to understand, however, that in
their search for profit, there has to be basic sound principles
that health care providers would have to be involved and
support. One thing for certain: The whole idea that insurance
companies can pick and choose the healthiest of their clients
is wrong, and it will be corrected as we make certain that
those people that have preconditions will be acceptable.

We know that there are so many employers that want to
provide health care for their employees because it is the right
thing to do, and they just can't afford to do it. We have to
give them assistance.

We know that there is nobody in the United States that is
an adult and understands the problems we face that hasn't got a
horror story, with or without insurance, as to what has
happened to their families and, indeed, communities because the
system is broken.

We also know that we just don't have enough primary care
doctors and nurses and support system. And we have to encourage
these people in order for us to be healthy and competitive with
foreign countries to be out there, not just looking for profits
but looking to fulfill their life's work in terms of taking
care of our sick; and, more importantly or just as important,
to make certain that we avoid these serious and expensive
illnesses.

We have the support of the President of the United States.
We sincerely wish that this could be a bipartisan effort. The
book is not closed. We have before us a discussion draft, and
we have had more discussion than we had thought we would have,
which I think is healthy; so that at the end of the day, when
we pass this, more and more Americans would understand that we
have done the right thing.

And certainly the polls, for what it is worth,
overwhelmingly believe that what we are doing in terms of
having a competitive public option so that people can go to
exchange and pick and choose, with a variety of private options
just as we in the Congress have, and also a public option, we
think at the end of the day it is going to be the American
citizens that will be the beneficiary. The industry will be
improved. America will be stronger and more competitive. And we
all are privileged to be able to be participants in this
effort.

Peter Stark is one of the--probably, with me, is
historically the longest-serving Member of this great Committee
that was cited in the Constitution, and the only one cited. And
he has dedicated his entire legislative career to trying to get
a handle on the ever-increasing problems that health care has
caused our Nation to face.

I know that this era is one of the most proudest that he
has enjoyed, and the Committee is grateful for the investment
that he has made in time and dedication to reach this point
that during his stay here, he would be able to say, we finally
have improved the system.

Pete, we are indebted to you, and I would like at this
point in time to yield to you.

Mr. STARK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You and my colleagues
and the President are committed to health reform, and I think
we all understand this is the time to act. We have worked with
our colleagues on the Energy and Commerce and the Education and
Labor Committees to write a draft proposal that provides
affordable, quality health care for all, expands choice, and
slows the rate of growth in health care spending.

Some will be unhappy that we still don't have CBO numbers
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for provisions. We put this bill out last Friday in draft form
so that all Members of Congress, the American public, and
interested parties can read the discussion draft and provide us
with input.

Today's hearing, we hope, will be long, and we will hear
from three panels. The first will be our panel of policy
experts with their thoughts; second, a panel consisting of
those impacted by health reform--consumers, seniors, businesses
both large and small, labor; third, we will hear from health
care providers who will share with us their thoughts on our
draft legislation.

As I said, it is in draft form. Today's hearing will give
us guidance for meetings over the next couple of weeks as we
work to convert this draft into a final bill.

So I want to thank all of our witnesses in advance for
their testimony. They have had a lot to analyze in a short
time, and we appreciate their willingness to enlighten us
today. Thank you very much.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Most of you know, and certainly the Committee Members know,
that David Camp and I have tried with the most that we can to
see whether or not we could work together in a bipartisan way.
Many times this is impossible because of the differences, not
of he and I, but certainly of the political direction in which
the parties would want to go.

We know that this is not a Democratic problem. It is not a
Republican problem. And the Nation is going to look at this as
a problem that we hope that we can come together and work
together and bring up a bipartisan bill.

As Peter Stark has indicated, this is a discussion draft
bill that will help us to try to perfect our ideas. And I yield
to my friend David Camp for whatever purposes he would want to
state.

Mr. CAMP. Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you for
holding this hearing. And I want to thank all of the witnesses
and the panels that have taken time out to be here today.

Mr. Chairman, I am not sure quite what to focus on this
morning, all we know about the bill or all that we don't know
about the bill. But in either sense, it is very disturbing. And
let me begin with what we don't know.

We don't know how much CBO says it will cost or how it will
be paid for. And hopefully everybody can see page 162 of the
bill on the TV screens. Now, I know a picture is worth a
thousand words, but I think that picture may be worth well over
a trillion dollars.

The bill says other revenue raisers are to be provided.
When will these tax increases be provided? When will the
American public get to know how much this trip to the doctor
will cost them? Those details aren't unimportant.

If you are shopping for a car, even I have to admit that a
Ferrari looks pretty good next to a Ford until you see the
pricetag. A six-bedroom mansion on the waterfront looks pretty
good next to a modest three-bedroom ranch until you see the
pricetag. We need to know the pricetag of this bill if we are
to do our jobs properly, and that is to write a bill our
country can afford that will guarantee every American has
access to affordable quality health care.

Just this morning I received an independent, nonpartisan
analysis of the bill. I know I said this picture was well over
a trillion dollars, but this report makes it clear that I
really don't have much future in appraising because this bill
is actually worth $3.5 trillion.

And let me repeat that for everyone here, especially the
Members who have not been given any information on the cost. An
independent, nonpartisan analysis says this bill costs $3.5
trillion. And I ask that a copy of this report by HIS Network
be included in the record.

Now, that is a staggering figure, even in Washington.
Equally staggering are some of the ideas we have heard floating

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CHRG-111hhrg62998/html/CHRG-111hhrg62998 .htm 8/304



1/18/24, 12:06 PM - HEALTH REFORM IN THE 21ST CENTURY: PROPOSALS TO REFORM THE HEALTH SYSTEM

around about how to pay for this bill, such as new taxes on
employer-sponsored health benefits, new taxes on sugared soft
drinks, additional taxes on alcohol that will turn Joe Sixpack
into Joe Fourpack, a new national sales tax, new taxes on
American businesses competing worldwide, and higher Medicare
taxes.

Those are pretty darned scary in and of themselves. But
what has me in shock is the fact that those taxes won't even
come close to covering $3.5 trillion in new Federal Government
spending. And it is clear that if we move forward with this
$3.5 trillion bill and with any of those taxes, whatever hope
remained that the President would keep his word not to tax
families earning less than $250,000 will be quickly erased.

The President has also promised repeatedly that Americans
who have and like their insurance will be able to keep it. Now,
I know he is getting pressured to back off that statement. I
would hope both Republicans and Democrats on this Committee
would help him keep that pledge.

But the analysis we received this morning says this bill
would cause 64 million Americans to lose their coverage. Sixty-
four million. That means one out of every three Americans under
the age of 65 would lose their current private health coverage.
We need to strengthen and improve our health care system, not
destroy it.

No matter what comes out of this hearing, unanswered will
be several critical questions. How much will you tax and who
pays those " “other revenues''? What will be the impact on
family budgets? What will be the impact on employees and
employers and on those looking for work? What about the economy
as a whole? I am disappointed that this information isn't
before us since it is impossible to make a thorough evaluation
of the bill without it.

Now to what we do know. It creates a government-run plan
that reimburses at Medicare rates, which will force millions of
Americans to lose their current health care plan. There are
absolutely no prohibitions on new government-run plan or
government programs like Medicare or Medicaid from using cost-
effectiveness research to impose delays or denials of access to
life-saving treatments for patients. And just the new taxes and
penalties on employers that we have already seen will force 4.7
million Americans to lose their job.

Now, those aren't my numbers or my analysis. That is what
you get when you plus the taxes associated with an employer
mandate into the economic models developed by Dr. Christina
Romer, the Chair of the President's Council of Economic
Advisers, and Jared Bernstein, who is in the Office of the Vice
President.

What does this leave us with? In short, a bill in which the
solution costs more than the problem, and health care reform in
which millions of Americans lose their insurance, lose access
to treatment, and maybe even their job.

This is what happens when legislation of this nature is
written in secret by a few behind closed doors without the
input of Members on both sides of the aisle, not to mention the
families and businesses it will affect. I have heard even
Members of this Committee have raised their concerns about the
way this bill was written. So have Blue Dogs in a written
letter, and so have House Republicans.

This painfully reminds me of the stimulus bill. But as
important as it was, we were just talking about money then.
This time we are talking about people's health, about their
lives. We cannot get it wrong again.

The President was right when he said health care reform
should not be a Democrat issue or a Republican issue, but an
American issue. And as you know, last week Republicans outlined
a summary of what we believe successful health care reform
should focus on—-—affordability, accessibility, and availability
of quality health care for all Americans.

There are a number of areas where we could reach bipartisan
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agreement. I and the Republican Members of this Committee stand
ready to meet and work with you to get this bill right, and I
hope we can do that soon.

And with that, I yield back the balance of my time.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you. I ask you to share with me at
some point in time the firm that did the analysis for you that
estimated the $3.5 trillion cost because it may be helpful for
us to be able to make up numbers since Republicans and
Democrats are stuck with the Congressional Budget Office. And
as you know, they have not been very friendly in their
estimates in terms of costs. But if someone can create just
$3.5 trillion, I can share with you that I will walk away from
any bill that has this type of cost.

The whole idea of cost, however, should not be an issue
because we are going to pay for this not by raising taxes, but
even in this walk-through that we have. Five hundred billion
dollars is reform in the system that we have.

And whatever we do to raise the other revenue, at the end
of the day we will be able to say that the bill is a reform
bill and will not be additional cost. So we have to try to read
from the same page. And I know you won't object to reading from
the pages given to both of us by the Congressional Budget
Office.

And yes, we all would want Ferraris. I was settling for a
Cadillac since it is made in the United States. But after we
look at the cost of the options that are there, then we will
know what we can afford. And so it really doesn't make that
much difference as to what we hope for. We will only do what we
can afford and what will be acceptable to the American people.

I am glad to hear you say that your minds are open. At any
point during the testimony of your witnesses or ours that you
believe we can sit down and work together, we will go into
recess, go into the library, take advantage of that, and then
move forward.

So let today be the beginning of a new start. And as
Chairman Stark has said, we have an extraordinary panel here.
The first panel we have is Karen Pollitz, who is the Policy
Director of the Health Policy Institute from Georgetown Public
Policy Institute, Georgetown University; John Holahan, Dr.
Holahan, who is the Director of the Health Policy Research
Center in The Urban Institute; Quentin Young, Dr. Quentin
Young, National Coordinator for Physicians for a National
Health Program, from Chicago; and David Gratzer, Dr. David
Gratzer, a Fellow, Manhattan Institute for Policy Research,
from my hometown and my city, New York, New York.

We thank you for taking the time to come here to share your
views with us so that we can make a more perfect piece of
legislation. We have—--by unanimous consent, all of the
documents that you have will be submitted in our record.

Restrict it this morning to 5 minutes for each witness,
which is indicated by the red light coming on. And the
Republicans and Democrats welcome your appearance here before
the Congress and the Committee.

So we will start off with Dr. Karen Pollitz.

STATEMENT OF KAREN POLLITZ, POLICY DIRECTOR, HEALTH POLICY
INSTITUTE, GEORGETOWN PUBLIC POLICY INSTITUTE, GEORGETOWN
UNIVERSITY

Ms. POLLITZ. Thank you. I am not a doctor. Just call me
Karen.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you, Karen.

Ms. POLLITZ. And good morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the
Committee. I want to congratulate you on the tri-committee
draft proposal for health care reform. It contains the key
elements needed to achieve universal coverage and introduce
cost discipline into our health care system. It reflects both
wisdom and practicality. And this time I believe you will get
the job done.
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The tri-committee proposal defines a minimum health benefit
standard. It requires all Americans to have at least that
minimum coverage, with shared financing responsibility by
employers. It creates tax credits for small businesses, expands
the Medicaid safety net, and creates new premium and cost-
sharing subsidies for private health insurance coverage to help
other Americans of modest means.

The proposal also establishes a set of strong new market
reforms for private health insurance, with important consumer
protections. It creates a new health insurance exchange, an
organized health insurance market, with greater consumer
protections and support than individuals and small employers
have today.

It will provide competitive information on plan choices,
help with enrollment, appeals, application for subsidies. It
will have a health insurance ombudsman to help individuals and
small businesses navigate the coverage system and make good
choices. And on their behalf, the exchange will negotiate with
insurers over premiums in order to get the best possible
bargain. And importantly, consumers and employers who buy
coverage in the exchange will also have the choice of a new
public plan option.

A recent national poll indicates Americans strongly favor
the establishment of a public plan option to compete with
private health insurers. Such an option can address failures of
competitive health insurance markets today.

First, it offers consumers an alternative to private plans
that for years have competed on the basis of discriminating
against people when they are sick. Just last week your
colleagues on the Energy and Commerce Committee held a hearing
on health insurance rescissions.

There, a woman battling breast cancer testified that her
health insurance was revoked for failure to disclose a visit to
a dermatologist for acne. When consumers are required to buy
coverage, having a public option that doesn't have a track
record of behaving that way will give many peace of mind.

Second, a public plan option will promote cost containment.
Research shows that health insurance markets today do not
compete to hold down costs. Rather, insurers and providers
negotiate to pass costs through to policyholders while
maintaining and growing profits.

For the first few years, the public plan option will be
allowed to base its payment to doctors and hospitals and most
other providers on the Medicare fee schedule——actually,
increases above those fee levels—-but over time it will develop
innovative payment methodologies that hold down costs and
promote quality.

Mr. Chairman, clearly, as this bill moves through the
legislative process, there will be opportunities to improve and
modify it. And in my written statement, I offer several
recommendations in this regard, and would briefly describe just
three of those for you now.

First, with respect to the essential benefits package, I
think there are opportunities to strengthen the package and add
specificity. The essential benefits package in particular does
not include a limit on cost-sharing for care received by non-
network-plan physicians. That is an important protection to
add. And the essential benefits package doesn't have a specific
reference to a benchmark plan, the Blue Cross Blue Shield
standard option plan that so many Members of Congress have, and
that has been discussed as a reasonable benchmark for coverage
adequacy.

It is not clear whether the essential benefits package
outlined in the draft proposal meets that standard, but it
should. And if it doesn't, then the standard should be
improved. And if that requires adding more money to the bill,
then you should add it.

Second, with regard to rules governing health insurance,
new rules won't be meaningful unless there are resources for
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oversight and enforcement. The Department of Health and Human
Services today has four employees who work part-time on private
health insurance oversight. At the Department of Labor, there
has been testimony indicating that there are resources to
review each employer-sponsored health plan under that
Department's jurisdiction once every 300 years. And State
insurance departments are also strapped for resources.

Your colleague on the Appropriations Committee,
Congresswoman DelLauro, has introduced legislation to provide
resources for health insurance oversight and enforcement, and I
hope you will work with her.

And finally, with regard to subsidies, the bill, the draft
bill, creates sliding scale assistance so that middle-income
Americans with incomes up to 400 percent of the poverty level
would not have to pay more than 10 percent of income toward
their premiums.

But after that level, the subsidies stop, and as the charts
in my written statement indicate, some consumers, including
self-employed individuals, who have incomes above that level
might still face significant affordability problems. That is
essentially likely for people who buy family coverage and for
baby boomers who would face much higher premiums under the age
rating adjustments that are provided for under the bill.

So I hope the Committee will consider making additional
adjustments to your subsidy to protect all Americans so that
they don't have to spend more than 10 percent of their income
on health insurance.

Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Pollitz follows:]

[GRAPHIC(S) NOT AVAILABLE IN TIFF FORMAT]

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you so much.

We will now entertain the statement from Dr. John Holahan,
director of the Health Policy Research Center. Thank you for
coming.

STATEMENT OF JOHN F. HOLAHAN, PH.D., DIRECTOR, THE HEALTH
POLICY RESEARCH CENTER, THE URBAN INSTITUTE

Mr. HOLAHAN. Thank you. Mr. Chairman and distinguished
Members of the Committee, thank you for inviting me to share my
views on the discussion draft. The views I express are mine
alone and should not be attributed to The Urban Institute, its
trustees, or its funders.

I believe this plan has many excellent features, and I
commend the Committee for its efforts. The plan builds upon the
successful health reform enacted in the State of Massachusetts,
provides for Medicaid expansion, a set of income-related
subsidies up to 400 percent of the Federal poverty line, a
national health exchange, and extensive insurance market
reforms.

It contains an individual mandate which is essential to
providing for universal coverage. It provides a cap on total
out-of-pocket spending for individuals, and higher payment
rates for primary care doctors.

I want to spend a few minutes on the public insurance
option. A public plan competing with private plans will provide
more choice and place substantial cost-containment pressure on
the health care system. The argument is often made that
competition between public and private plans could never be
fair and that it will lead to a single payer system.

This argument ignores the fact that many health insurance
markets, as well as provider markets, are simply not
competitive and efficient. An extraordinary amount of
concentration in the insurance and hospital industries has
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taken place over the last several years, and this concentration
has been a significant contributor to health care cost growth.

No one can be in favor of controlling health care costs and
ignore this reality. Several studies have documented the
increase in concentration and the effect on insurer
profitability and hospital revenues. For example, a number of
studies have shown that hospital rates are higher in more
highly concentrated markets by as much as 40 percent.

The public plan can help with the problem of cost
containment. First, it is likely to have somewhat lower
administrative costs. Second, the public plan can also
establish and negotiate provider payment rates at lower levels
than private payers are able or willing to negotiate today.

Today commercial payment rates are 35 percent above
Medicare for hospitals and 23 percent for physicians. The plan
will likely need to pay higher rates than Medicare does today
to assure access to a sufficient number of providers. Where
these rates are set is critically important. I think there
should be a key role for MedPAC in advising the Congress on
this.

There are a number of aspects of the public plan that are
important to assure fair competition. The public plan should be
legally and administratively separate from exchanges. It should
abide by the same insurance market rules that private plans do.
It should offer the same benefit packages, have the same levels
of cost-sharing, and the same caps on out-of-pocket
liabilities. The income-related subsidies should apply in the
same way to all plans. The plans should be required to maintain
adequate reserves.

On the other hand, the public plan may well get a
disproportionate share of high-risk enrollees. A level playing
field also means that a public plan should be compensated if it
does end up with a less healthy population.

The public plan can reduce the costs of reform
significantly. In a paper being released this week by The Urban
Institute, we estimate that subsidy costs would be lower by
$200 to $400 billion relative to a plan with only private
insurance options.

We also believe that the public plan will not destroy the
private insurance market, in part because the private market
will respond to competition from the public plan, and in itself
become more efficient.

In the same paper, we have estimated that the net loss in
private coverage will be relatively small. While a large number
of those currently in the non-group and small group market will
purchase coverage through the exchange and many will choose to
join the public plan, there are close to 50 million uninsured
who will now obtain coverage. Some will enroll in Medicaid or
the public plan, but many will end up in private plans.

On balance, we estimate that the number of people with
private coverage will fall from about 177 million to 161
million. In the end, the number with private insurance will not
be too different than it is today, and the savings to the
government in lower subsidy costs will be substantial.

I would like to close by saying that while there is not a
cost estimate for this bill, the CBO estimates for one of the
Senate bills last week was $1.6 trillion over 10 years. This
may seem an alarming number, but it should be viewed in
context.

Over the 10-year period, 2010 to 2019, the amount of gross
domestic product projected for the U.S. economy will be $187
trillion. Even a number as high as 1.6 trillion is less than 1
percent of the amount of GDP being produced over this period.
The Nation will also spend $33 trillion in health care over
this period, even without reform.

We clearly need to gain control over this spending, and
there are many proposals for doing this. But these proposals
will require difficult choices. It is important that a good
plan be passed and be fully paid for, but the design should not
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be driven by a budget goal, whether it is $1.6 or $1.2 or $1.0.
There are many other key design features, and this is
affordable, and there are plenty of ways to pay for it.

Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Holahan follows:]

[GRAPHIC(S) NOT AVAILABLE IN TIFF FORMAT]

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you, Doctor.

The Committee would now invite Dr. Young, the National
Coordinator for Physicians for a National Health Program, from
Chicago.

STATEMENT OF QUENTIN YOUNG, M.D., MACP, NATIONAL COORDINATOR,
PHYSICIANS FOR A NATIONAL HEALTH PROGRAM, CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

Dr. YOUNG. Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I thank
you for giving me the opportunity to comment on the proposal
that has emerged from the three key House Committees, and to
articulate the single payer alternative. Thank you.

I am the National Coordinator of Physicians for a National
Health Program, an organization of some 16,000 American
physicians who support single payer national health insurance.
Our organization represents the views of the majority of the
U.S. physicians now, 59 percent of whom support national health
insurance in a recent survey. I wish to make two points to the
Members of this Committee.

The first is that the best health policy, science,
literature, and experience indicate that the tri-committee
proposal will fail miserably in its purported goal of providing
comprehensive, sustainable health coverage to all Americans.
And it will fail whether or not it includes the so-called
public option health plan.

The second point I wish to make is that the single payer
national health insurance is not just the only path to
universal coverage, it is the most politically feasible to
health care for all because it pays for itself, requiring no
new sources of revenue.

The difference between single payer and the tri-committee
proposal could not be more stark. Single payor has at its core
the elimination of U.S.-style private insurance, using huge
administrative savings and inherent cost control mechanisms to
provide comprehensive, sustainable, universal coverage.

The tri-committee discussion draft preserves all of the
systemic defects inherent in relying on a patchwork of private
insurance companies to finance health care, a system which has
been a terrible failure both in providing health coverage and
controlling costs heretofore.

Elimination of the U.S.-style private insurance has been a
prerequisite to the achievement of universal health care in
every other industrialized country in the world. In contrast,
public program expansions, coupled with mandates like those in
the tri-committee proposal, have failed everywhere they have
been tried, both domestically and internationally.

First, because the discussion draft is built around the
retention of private insurance companies, it is unable, in
contrast to single payer, to recapture the 400 billion in
administrative waste that private insurers currently generate
in their drive to fight claims, issue denials, and screen out
the sick. A single payer system would redirect these huge
savings back into the system, requiring no net increase in
health spending, and covering those uncovered today.

Second, because the discussion draft fails to contain the
cost control mechanisms inherent in single payer, such as
global budgeting, bulk purchasing, negotiated fees, and planned
capital expenditures, any gains in coverage will quickly be
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erased as costs skyrocket and government is forced to choose
between raising revenue and cutting benefits, something we face
today.

Third, because of this inability to control costs or
realize administrative savings, the coverage and benefits that
can be offered under the discussion draft will be of the same
type currently offered by private carriers, which cause
millions of insured Americans to go without needed care due to
the cost and have led to an epidemic of medical bankruptcies, 1
million annually presently.

Virtually all of the reforms contained in the discussion
draft have been tried, and have failed repeatedly. Plans that
combined mandates to purchase coverage with Medicaid expansions
fell apart in Massachusetts in 1988, Oregon in 1992, and
Washington State in 1993. The latest iteration, Massachusetts
2006, is already stumbling with uninsured rates again rising
and costs soaring. Tennessee's experiment with a massive
Medicaid expansion and a public plan option worked for 1 year,
until rising costs sank it.

The inclusion of a so-called public option cannot salvage
this structurally defective reform package. A public plan
option does not lead toward the single payer but toward the
segregation of patients, with profitable ones in private plans
and unprofitable ones in the public plan.

A quarter—century experience with public/private
competition in the Medicare program demonstrates that the
private plans will not allow a level playing field. Despite
strict regulation, private insurers have successfully cherry-
picked healthier seniors and have exploited regional health
spending differences to their advantage.

They have progressively undermined the public plan, which
started as a single payer system for seniors but now has become
a funding mechanism for private HMOs and a place to dump the
unprofitable ill.

The potential $1 trillion pricetag on the tri-committee
proposal already threatens to capsize our new President's
flagship initiative. In contrast, single payer avoids these
hazardous political waters entirely because it requires no new
sources of funding.

In tumultuous economic times, single payer is the only
fiscally responsible option. Two-thirds of the American people
support it. The majority of physicians are in favor of it, as
are the U.S. Conference of Mayors, 39 State labor federations,
and hundreds of local unions across the country. Millions of
Americans are mobilized to struggle for single payer, but your
leadership is crucial. I hope this Committee will see fit to
provide it.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Young follows:]

[GRAPHIC(S) NOT AVAILABLE IN TIFF FORMAT]

Chairman RANGEL. Dr. Young, the Chair has been advised that
one of our most distinguished Members in the House and the
Chairman of the Judiciary Committee has arrived and is here
with us, and that is Chairman John Conyers. If he is here, I
want to pause and recognize the fight that he has had over the
decades in support of the single payer.

And I want you to understand, Dr. Young, that our President
has decided that he wants to make every effort to have a
bipartisan bill. And I think there are over 83 Members of
Congress that have supported the single payer. But I don't
think too many of them belong to the other party.

And so in an effort to launch this in a way that we could
accommodate each other, we have the public program that we hope
would compete with the private sector. But having said that,
Members will have questions later. And I hope that if Chairman
Conyers is in the audience, he would stand so that we would
recognize the service he has provided over the years.

John Conyers, we thank you.
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[Applause]

Chairman RANGEL. We thank you for your great contribution,
and we would not be where we are today had it not been for your
great efforts here.

The Chair would like to call on Dr. David Gratzer. He is
from Manhattan Institute for Policy Research from the great
town of New York, New York.

Thank you.

STATEMENT OF DAVID GRATZER, M.D., SENIOR FELLOW, MANHATTAN
INSTITUTE FOR POLICY RESEARCH, NEW YORK, NEW YORK

Dr. GRATZER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Members of
the Committee.

Mr. Chairman, as you gave me that warm introduction, I was
reminded of a comment a colleague of mine had said a few years
ago when he suggested that on paper, I seemed like a remarkable
individual.

Chairman RANGEL. Let's hope so at the end of your
testimony.

Dr. GRATZER. Mr. Chairman, I made a similar comment when I
testified a couple of weeks ago before a Subcommittee of the
Committee on Education and Labor. People also laughed then, and
I am not sure why. Pause for a moment just to soak this up.

I am a kid from the prairie, and it is an enormously
humbling experience to speak before this august body. And I
appreciate the work that you are doing. And we may agree to
disagree on some things, but I am honored to be able to testify
today.

I am going to speak in a few moments about the draft
legislation before us. But I want to pause for a moment and
talk about some personal experiences. You know, health care is
ultimately very personal. And it is important as we discuss
policy details, as we discuss statistics and figures, not to
leave out the human aspects of this.

A few years ago my wife hurt her back. We had gone on a ski
trip in the Rockies. Actually, I had been invited out to a
conference, and they had generously even agreed to pay for my
wife's plane ticket. A1l I had to do was buy the lift tickets,
and off we went.

My wife is no athlete. She is an emergency doctor, and she
hurt her back. I want to emphasize for the sake of our marriage
that she tells the story a little bit differently than I do.
Her version of events involves gale-like winds of 60 miles an
hour or so, a tall mountain rivaling, perhaps, Everest, and a
small mammal that had crossed her path that needed to be saved.
My version of events is a little less august, involving a small
ski slope, the bunny hill, and a lot of falls on her rear.

But whether or not you accept her version of events or
mine, at the end of the day she ended up seriously hurting her
back. And my wife, who likes to log long hours in the emergency
department, ended up lying on her couch in pain, numbness in
her foot, largely unable to work.

We were uninsured at the time, and interested in getting
her some help. Forty years ago there would have been no help to
be had. She just would have lived her life like that. Twenty-
five years ago there would have been a surgical procedure to
help her out that would have had a long convalescence, a risky
procedure that may not have worked.

My wife ended up getting a procedure that lasted less than
28 minutes, involved a scar that she wears on her back that is
less than a half-inch long, and within a few weeks, she was
able to rise up from that couch and go back to life.

It was in its own ways something of a miracle, something we
see every day in American health care. I would emphasize that
there are so many problems with American health care-—and we
are going to talk about that today, in the coming days and the
coming weeks. But we should not forget what is good about this
system, that American medicine is second to none.
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I have talked about my wife's back, but certainly we could
cite other examples. Death by cardiovascular disease has
dropped by two-thirds in the last 60 years. Polio is confined
to the history books. Childhood leukemia, once a death
sentence, is eminently treatable for people under the age of
11.

You know, in my other life I am a doctor, and I have seen
miracles there, too. I had a patient who came in covered in his
own urine who was completely psychotic. We gave him an anti-
psychotic, a new one, developed right here in the United
States, and he went back to being a college student and living
out his life. Let us not forget the successes when we talk
about the failures.

0f course, there are problems. It was difficult to find a
neurosurgeon for my wife because quality is so uneven and they
are such a black box. We actually Yahoo'ed " “Neurosurgery, west
New York,'' and got a bunch of porn sites. Costs are uneven and
at times inexplicable. We got a bill that lasted about 3\1/2\
feet and was unanswerable.

People look at these problems and they say, it is time now
for Washington to take a larger role, a more robust role. And I
see that Members of the Committee are entertaining that. I
understand that temptation.

I understand the belief that government expansion will be
compassionate and will increase quality. I understand that
because I used to believe it. I was born and raised in Canada.

I, too, believed in some level of socialized medicine. Then I
got mugged by reality, and I have seen the waiting lists and
the queues for care and how unsatisfying it is.

You have a choice to make, and down one path is the
government temptation. But there is also, my friends, the low
road less traveled of individual choice and true competition.

And that is why I think we need policy reform and regulatory
reform and tax reform to build on what is good with this
system, and not to end up with a system far worse like you see
in Canada or Britain or right across the western world.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Gratzer follows:]

Prepared Statement of David Gratzer, M.D., Senior Fellow,
Manhattan Institute for Policy Research, New York, New York

Thank you for this opportunity to testify at this important time.
My testimony is drawn from personal experience——as a physician born and
trained in Canada, as the author of two books (and the editor of a
third) on comparative health care policy, and as a senior fellow at the
Manhattan Institute. (For the record, the views I present are my own
and do not necessarily represent those of the Manhattan Institute.)

The choices Congress will make on this issue are critical both for
the United States and for patients around the world who benefit from
American advances in diagnostic technology, pharmaceuticals,
biotechnology, surgical techniques, and medical device design.

It is not a coincidence that the United States is so productive in
medical science. America's health care system is unique in its capacity
to mobilize private investment. Many critics of the system look at its
rising share of GDP and see only cost. But we must remember in these
discussions that American medicine is second to none. The achievements
of the last 60 years have been amazing: Polio is confined to the
history books; death by cardiovascular disease has fallen by two-
thirds; childhood leukemia, once a death sentence, is now treatable.

The U.S. system needs reform, yes. Costs continue to rise. Quality
is uneven. Too many lack insurance. But in our effort to make a system
with better coverage and access, we must not lose what is right and
what is good.

1. BUILDING ON WHAT WORKS

U.S. lawmakers should be cautious about borrowing reforms from
other countries; Congress must reform the health care system with made-
in-America solutions.

Congressional leaders would be wise to focus on simple, practical
reforms that build on what works in this system.
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We must recognize the forgotten role of health in health
care (policy reform);

We should foster insurance competition in a larger
marketplace (regulatory reform); and

We must level the tax playing field for individuals
seeking insurance outside the workplace (tax reform).

Supporters of a single payer model repeatedly point to America's
lower life expectancy as evidence of a systemic failure. As a
physician, let me assure you that life expectancy is about much more
than what happens in the doctor's office. Indeed, some of the biggest
problems we face are due to choices and not (health) care. Americans
live unhealthily—--smoking, drinking, and eating more than their
neighbors to the north, or their Western European cousins. Consider
that the percentage of obese Americans has doubled in the last quarter
century.

The failure to prevent common illnesses like diabetes and lung
cancer carries significant financial consequences for the health care
system. Both Democrats and Republicans can agree with this point.
Significant government and private actions are needed——-we must do more
to promote wellness, provide incentives for prevention, and encourage
Americans to take greater responsibility for their own health.

Market competition can contain the high cost of insurance—-if
Congress and the States would only allow it to take place. Efforts at
creating equity and fairness in the health insurance market--done with
the best of intentions—-have created dramatic differences in price
across the country. For example, a health-insurance plan for a family
of four in New York can cost more than $12,000 a year, but a similar is
about $3,000 in Wisconsin.

The Federal Government can promote regulatory strategies that will
increase interstate insurance competition. Proposals to create a true
national market for health insurance is on the right track, but
Congress must go farther to level the tax and regulatory playing field
for non—-group insurance. Once the marketplace of individuals can
compete fairly with employer-provided plans, they can serve as an ideal
vehicle for broadening coverage to the uninsured.

2. THE SOCIAL RISKS OF GOVERNMENT-MANAGED CARE

Single payer advocates and their allies insist that only government
health insurance can solve America's problems. For example, when it
comes to wellness, some claim——without evidence—-that preventive care
will be strengthened in a single payer system.

In reality, preventive care has suffered in many single payer
systems because it is not urgent care. Governments in single payer
systems have tended to see "“elective'' and preventative care as a
safer target for rationing, in much the same way that governments
worldwide habitually underbudget for infrastructure maintenance.

For example, it's a common mantra that Canadians can choose their
own family doctor in Canada's socialized health system. But as many as
one-sixth of Canadians cannot find a family doctor. Canada has two-
thirds as many doctors as the OECD average, with severe shortages in
several areas of specialty (for example, gynaecology). When there are
no doctors to choose from, the " freedom to choose'' is a limited
benefit. The doctor shortage is a direct result of government
rationing, since provinces intervened to restrict class sizes in major
Canadian medical schools in the 1990s.

To further inform Congress about the challenges of government-
managed care, I cite Canadian-sourced data.

(1) CIHI Reports on Provincial Wait-Times " "Progress''

The Canadian Institute for Health Information (CIHI), a government-
funded body, is the designated agency responsible for collecting
provincial wait-times data. Their reports \1\ paint a disturbing
picture. Advocates for the Canadian system often cherry-pick broad
averages or median wait time figures, but CIHI's most recent (2008)
data gives a fuller picture of what service is like at the " “back of
the line.'' Consider just a few examples:

\1\ The latest CIHI reports on provincially-reported wait times are
available at www.cihi.ca.
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In Alberta, Canada's wealthiest province, 50% of
outpatients waited 41 days or more for an MRI scan. Ten percent of
those patients waited 4\1/2\ months or longer.
In Saskatchewan, 10% of knee replacement patients waited
616 days or more for surgery.
In Nova Scotia, 25% of patients waited 199 days or more
for cataract removal.

All of these and other figures reflect wait times after referral by
a general practitioner. As noted earlier, millions of Canadians do not
have access to a family doctor.
(2) Canadian Wait Times Alliance: Annual Reports, 2004-2009

Canada's Wait Times Alliance offers a counterpoint to CIHI's
reports. The Alliance consists exclusively of Canadian medical
professional associations like the Canadian Medical Association. Their
2009 report, Unfinished Business, opens with the observation that
““Canadians are used to waiting.'' The report \2\ notes that provincial
““progress'' toward wait times targets often represents progress toward
““minimum wait-times standards, rather than desired wait-times
standards. "'

\2\ The 2009 Report is available, as are previous years' reports,
at www.waittimealliance.ca.

(3) Chaoulli v. Quebec (Attorney General), 2005 SCC 35

This recent decision \3\ by the Supreme Court of Canada serves as a
wake—-up call to those who see the Canadian system as a utopian mix of
public funding and private choice. The case centred on a patient who
chose to sue for the right to use his own money to secure timely
medical treatment, a right that was denied Canadians until the Chaoulli
decision.

\3\ The Chaoulli decision is online at http://
csc. lexum.umontreal.ca/en/2005/2005scc35/2005scc35.html.

Writing for the majority, Justice Marie Deschamps concluded that:

**[TIhe evidence in this case shows that delays in the public
health care system are widespread, and that, in some serious
cases, patients die as a result of waiting lists for public
health care. The evidence also demonstrates that the
prohibition against private health insurance and its
consequence of denying people vital health care result in
physical and psychological suffering that meets a threshold
test of seriousness.''

Chaoulli v. Quebec (Attorney-General) 2005

(4) [Quebec] Taskforce on the Funding of the Health System, 2008

Finally, consider the most recent report from Quebec, a
comprehensive review of a government-managed system in peril. The
government-appointed Chair of the Taskforce was M. Claude Castonguay,
widely considered " the father of Quebec medicare,'' as he co-authored
a report in the late 1960s that created Quebec's earliest single payer
model. Almost 40 years later, this report \4\ concluded that " there is
no ideal system,'' called for an increase in private sector involvement
and cited crippling cost inflation and poorly rationed care as major
flaws in Quebec's single payer model.

\4\ The full report is online in English at http://
www. financementsante.gouv.qc.ca/en/rapport/index.asp.

3. THE FISCAL RISKS OF GOVERNMENT-MANAGED CARE

These challenges are not unique to Canada. Around the world, the
more public the system, the greater the challenge in managing it. For
example, the United Kingdom recently increased the annual budget of the
National Health Service (NHS) by tens of billions of pounds in an
effort to bring wait times below their own targets. The effort
succeeded, but only if you believe that the NHS guarantee of care no
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later than 18 weeks after a referral represents timely service.
Recessionary budget reductions are likely to limit further progress as
the Brown government has ordered the NHS to prepare for increases below
core inflation (1.6%) in fiscal year 2010-2011.

The White House is alarmed by private-sector health inflation, but
it must also acknowledge the same trend in government-managed systems.
Even with pharmaceutical price controls, technology rationing, and
limited capital investments, almost all Canadian provinces carry
substantial debts fuelled mostly by persistent health care inflation.
Ontario's health budget is projected to grow by 7% for each of the next
3 years. The 2008 Taskforce calculated Quebec's annual health inflation
rate at almost 6%. In Britain, the NHS admits to a 60 year average
increase of 3% over inflation. Ireland's single payer system has
experienced constant price turbulence. Despite 3.5% deflation this May,
Irish health costs still grew at an annualized rate of 4.5%.

What causes inflation in public health insurance programs? As
government's role as the primary funder grows, the greater the
political contradiction between demands for fiscal restraint and demand
for service. The pattern is consistent across national boundaries: If
governments provide the insurance, benefits come cheap and easy in the
early years. When the cost of treating older citizens, serving new
patients or providing new treatments climbs, policymakers face a
devil's choice between rationed care or tax-funded cost inflation. Most
often, they try to balance the two bad options, restraining inflation
slightly below U.S. levels with ever-more painful restraints on capital
investment, human resources, technology, and drug access. Waiting lists
for treatment are the inevitable consequence.

4. A PUBLIC PLAN OPTION IS GOVERNMENT-MANAGED CARE

The Administration insists that support for a " “public plan
option'' is not intended to serve as a ~"Trojan horse'' for a single
payer health care system. I can only reply with the time-honoured
scientific observation that " “if it walks like a duck, if it quacks
like a duck . . ."'

The historic reality is that even if the Administration sincerely
does not want public insurance to serve as a Trojan horse for a single
payer system, the public plan option is certain to deliver exactly that
result, just as more limited public insurance schemes in Canada,
Britain, and other countries, came to dominate their own health
sectors:

As a government program rather than a state-regulated
insurance plan, the public plan option has competitive advantages;
If those advantages are removed, then there is no point
in introducing the public plan when the proposed " “Health Insurance

Exchange'' will increase competition anyhow;

If the advantages are left intact, the United States will
undermine its private-sector health care, as have other western
countries.

The Administration believes a public option is needed to, in the
President's words, " “keep the insurance industry honest.'' If this
argument is carried to its logical conclusion, the public plan must
also be " “honest."'

Will the public plan be financed on a pay-as-you—-go basis as many
entitlement programs have been, or will it be properly financed to
future insurance costs?

Will the public option pay market costs for capital, just as
private insurers must?

Will the public plan comply with costly State mandates just as
private insurers do, or will the Federal Government override them?

If the public plan has any built-in government advantages, it will
build market share--not because it is necessarily better insurance, but
because it is subsidized and legally privileged. As the plan grows in
size, Federal taxpayers will foot an ever-larger share of the system's
increasing costs, and governments will be under ever-more pressure to
ration care to contain them.

Further, if the goal of public competition is to reduce the impact
of public health care costs on the U.S. Treasury, then the best policy
choices are those which extend coverage and improve affordability
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without significant damage to the U.S. tax base. Will the public plan
pay taxes to simulate the tax costs of a private insurer? If not, then
every dollar attracted to the public plan is a dollar taken from the
taxable private sector, reducing the economy's ability to carry the
costs of public health programs in future.

Let's be clear: American health care is in need of reform. But as
any good doctor knows, it's not enough to get the diagnosis right, we
need a treatment that makes sense. A massive expansion of Washington's
role is not that treatment. Rather, Congress should look to
alternatives:

Prioritize regulatory reforms that will open up true competition
between existing, fully-funded insurers.

Target direct government aid to individuals who really need it,
with incentives for individuals to become a powerful competitive force
in the insurance marketplace.

Promote rapid improvement in the personal health of Americans to
reduce demand on the system's most costly health care services.

These ideas would bring greater choice to American health care;
they would also help instill in the system the oldest of American
virtues: Personal responsibility. While they may not be as catchy as
promising Medicare for those who want it, these ideas have the benefit
of pushing the system toward a sustainable future, not a government
bureaucracy.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you so much for your testimony. I
can see why our Republican friends have selected you. You are
very persuasive. And I want to make it abundantly clear:
Anybody supporting this concept certainly cannot disregard the
great advancements that have been made in American medicine,
and the great contributions that the private sector have and
continue to give.

And I only wish that you can help us to understand that we
cannot find acceptable 48 million people without health care.
And I know you agree with that. Over half of that amount are
underinsured. And the whole idea that this genius of the
private sector cannot compete with a government operator, or
better than that, that the American people will not seek out
the best that they can find, certainly is a far cry from what
you describe as socialized medicine or whatever derogatory term
that you want to call it.

We are not competing for a French plan or a Canadian plan
or a foreign plan. This is an American problem, and it has to
be an American solution to it.

And so I just ask you, Doctor, if indeed we are talking
about competition, don't you believe that the government can
learn from the private sector and that the private sector can
learn from the government? We as Americans, and certainly the
medical profession, have never run away from the challenge of
competition. Why won't you give us a chance?

Dr. GRATZER. Mr. Chairman, let me agree with you that there
are significant problems here. And certainly I don't wish to
walk——or don't wish for you to walk away from my testimony
today thinking that I am glossing over these problems. There
are too many uninsured Americans.

I am not quite sure that we should be so concerned with
that large number, but within them there is a core group, maybe
8 or 9 million, who really do fall through the cracks. And it
is up to this body in these deliberations to find a way of
reaching out.

But be careful. Be careful what we end up doing because as
any good doctor knows, it is not enough to come up with the
right diagnosis. You have to come up with the right treatment.
And sometimes when you don't do that, the patient gets worse.

As you know, I am pretty libertarian in my thinking. Milton
Friedman wrote the foreword to my last book. He was a mentor
for me.
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Chairman RANGEL. What was the name of your book? We might
as well get that in now.

Dr. GRATZER. Well, Mr. Chairman, "~ “The Cure: How
Capitalization Can Save American Health Care,'' available on
Amazon.com at a very reasonable price, Mr. Chairman.

[Laughter.]

Dr. GRATZER. But today, I will offer you a book at no
charge. But Mr. Chairman, I think one should be very careful
about the language we use. Yes, you and I believe in
competition. Yes, you and I believe in individual choice. But a
public plan option as is being discussed is not true
competition, and it is not true choice.

As you know, the discussions underway are to have Medicare
pricing. In other words, we would build a public plan option
basically modeled after Medicare. Medicare is not really an
insurance. I know you and I throw that term out. And when you
have public plans in other countries, we talk about social
insurance, but they are not true insurance.

Medicare is a Federal program. Medicare is a Federal
program with price controls, one that is opted out of State
regulations, that doesn't require any of the capitalization
required of private insurances, that doesn't account as private
insurances do.

So yes, I believe in competition. But it has to be fair
competition. I think a better——-

Chairman RANGEL. Pause there. Tell me, please, what is
unfair about the option? Because I have more respect for the
ingenuity of the private sector. Why would anyone that enjoys
the genius of the private sector walk away from that to a
crumbling, failing, government, irresponsible program?

Dr. GRATZER. Can I quote you on that?

Chairman RANGEL. Well, this is your language. And I am
saying that why would anyone walk away from what you are
describing? The key word that separates you and I is that you
already said the program, the public option program, is unfair.

Well, hell, I am sorry, but if I was losing a lot of money
to a competitor, I would try to find that word, saying, this
competitor is coming in, reducing my profits. I am in business
to make money. That is what my job would be in the private
sector.

And if anyone came in with any idea about just providing
health care, I wouldn't call that unfair. Tell me what is
unfair about the system since we are searching to give
confidence that we want an even playing field?

What could we possibly do to provide that competition,
which I am certain you are not afraid of, as long as it is,
what, fair? Tell me what we could do to perfect this so you can
say, well, at least that is fair, and we can match you patient
for patient, and in your case, dollar for dollar.

Dr. GRATZER. Sure. Three words: Scrap price controls.

Chairman RANGEL. Where would the price control be?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, Medicare price controls. As you know,
there is a committee of-————

Chairman RANGEL. We are paying for the private sector with
Medicare. That is how they make their money. It is government
money that goes into these programs. The doctors are reimbursed
with Federal dollars.

Dr. GRATZER. But they are being reimbursed at a fraction of
what they would make in the private sector. And as you know,
there is good evidence that there is cost-shifting going on
whereby private plans end up picking up the weight, the dropped
weight, from the public system.

Chairman RANGEL. Doctor, we have so many programs that the
patients and the clients are supported by Federal dollars and
Medicare where they are doing so well and making profits, if
you will, by cutting a lot of procedures that are truly found
to be unnecessary.

And I might say that a lot of doctors would share with you
the lack of satisfaction that they get with the payment system,
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which forces them in many cases to find services that are not
necessary to be funded by the government because they don't
believe that the reimbursement is adequate. We are trying to
take care of that. I don't think we———-

Dr. GRATZER. Hold on, Mr. Chairman. I think you have
persuaded me that Medicare is in need of reform. I am not sure
you have persuaded me————-

Chairman RANGEL. You bet your sweet life it is.

Dr. GRATZER. But you have not persuaded me that———-

Chairman RANGEL. The whole system is broken.

Dr. GRATZER. The whole system is———

Chairman RANGEL. But we don't expect the private sector to
come forward and fix it. We need a partnership. We need a fair
relationship. And the only difference that separates you and I
is that I think you are suggesting that you are not afraid of
fair competition.

Dr. GRATZER. Then let's agree on what fair competition
might be for this public option.

Chairman RANGEL. Exactly.

Dr. GRATZER. No price controls. Reimbursement set by the
private sector. Capitalization required.

Chairman RANGEL. Reimbursement set by the private sector,
did you say?

Dr. GRATZER. Yes. Doctors ought to make a fair wage, don't
you think?

Chairman RANGEL. A fair wage? Okay. Okay. All right.

Dr. GRATZER. I believe in competition. But we are not
talking about competition between insurances.

Chairman RANGEL. Let's talk in New York.

Dr. GRATZER. We are talking about competition between————

Chairman RANGEL. It is all a question of what is fair. And
I would like to yield to the Ranking Member because we have
reduced our differences to price.

Mr. CAMP. Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have had a
number of hearings either in the Committee or Subcommittee—-I
think six this year—--on various aspects of health reform, seven
if you look at the Income Security Subcommittee's hearing on a
new entitlement program that was incorporated into this draft,
and really nearly two dozen in the last Congress.

So I really want to focus on the specific aspects of this
legislation before us, not necessarily in general what health
reform—what might be right and wrong in the health reform
system.

And so Dr. Gratzer, you mentioned the difference often
between the public and private plans. And I believe in section
1401(b) of the bill, there is a new tax on all non-government
health insurance policies, which would be another way that
competition isn't really fair between the public plan and the
private plans. It would be a $370 million tax to fund the
competitive effectiveness research trust fund.

Would this tax, in your opinion, fall on people at all
income levels? Is it based only on who has a non-government
health insurance policy or private health insurance?

Dr. GRATZER. I thank you for the question. I will be honest
with you: I am not as up on perhaps the specifics of the bill
as I should be. It is an 825-page bill, and I have only had
since Friday to review it.

But my suspicion is besides the structural differences
between a Federal program and insurance, you have hit the nail
on the head that even this bill will exaggerate these
differences from a tax point of view.

Again, I believe in competition, but it ought to be fair
competition. And if really what we are going to do is take this
public plan option and make it just like every other insurance
except it is not for profit, we already have the blues, sir.

Mr. CAMP. A1l right. Thank you.

And Ms. Pollitz, I am a little confused about whether
insurance policies offered through the exchange would have to
adhere to State benefit mandates. I believe in section 203,
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which starts on page 55 of the bill, that the new health
choices commissioner could override State mandates with their
authority. Is that your read of the bill?

Ms. POLLITZ. I don't remember. I am sorry.

Mr. CAMP. Okay. I believe on page 59 you would find that is
the case.

I also have a question for Dr. Holahan. It appears that
there will be, for an employer who does not offer health
insurance, an 8 percent tax on total wages. Is that your
understanding?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Yes.

Mr. CAMP. And if there was an employee who had a spouse who
had an insurance plan with another company, and that employee
decided to go on their spouse's insurance for some reason——it
may have better benefits; it may be cheaper for their family—-
and that policy was in the exchange, would the employer still
have to pay the 8 percent tax on that employee who was not
covered by insurance?

Mr. HOLAHAN. So you are saying the employee is covered, the
spouse is not?

Mr. CAMP. The spouse is covered by another plan that is in
an exchange. This employee decides, I will go on my spouse's
plan. I am not going to use my employer's plan. Because it
might be cheaper. It might have different benefit levels.

Mr. HOLAHAN. There are a lot of difficult design issues
in———-

Mr. CAMP. My view———-

Mr. HOLAHAN. I don't know how they dealt with that, to be
honest. I didn't see that.

Mr. CAMP. My read of the bill is that that employer would
still have to pay an 8 percent tax. So if the employee made
$100,000, the employer would still be on the hook for $8,000—-

Ms. POLLITZ. Mr. Camp.

Mr. CAMP [continuing]. Even though that employee was
covered.

Ms. POLLITZ. I believe there was a general provision in the
bill that allowed for a delegated authority to the Secretary to
arrange for accounting rules to take care of problems like
that. I don't know that it is specified in the bill, but it is
acknowledged that there would need to be accounting rules about
how families are covered when there is more than one source of
coverage, and that those will need to be addressed.

Mr. CAMP. Yes. The bill, as written now, would indicate
that that tax by the employer has to be paid. It wouldn't
necessarily change anything. The family doesn't pay that; it is
the employer's payment.

I also have a question, Dr. Holahan. The health choices
commissioner who would run the exchange, what protections are
there in the bill to ensure that there is the necessary
independence from the President and the Health and Human
Services Secretary, given that this person would be running the
health care-—the government plan? What protections in the bill
are to ensure that that is an independent position?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I don't think I can answer that. I didn't read
that part of it.

Mr. CAMP. Okay. It is my understanding there aren't any
such protections in the bill, and I think that is one of the
concerns that we would have.

Mr. HOLAHAN. As I said in my opening remarks, I would agree
with that. There has to be separation.

Mr. CAMP. Thank you.

I see my time is expired, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very
much.

Chairman RANGEL. Well, I have talked with staff. And as we
told you yesterday, we think the bill is clear that an employer
that offers insurance will not be penalized merely because one
of the employees would want to enjoy the benefits under another
plan.
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But in an effort to show the direction in which we want to
go, we are prepared to accept Republican language to make it
abundantly clear that if he is offering the insurance, it
doesn't mean that the employee has to accept it. So there is no
penalty involved.

I would like to yield to the Chairman of the Health
Committee.

Mr. STARK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank my colleagues
for their patience. I think it is important to note that in
this draft proposal, there are still many issues that are
undecided.

But I did feel that it is important to note that the——well,
there has been a good bit of discussion about a Canadian
system, which the public plan, I would suggest, is not. There
is basically nothing in the public option that would create a
Canadian-style system. Dr. Gratzer indicates that it would be
important to have preventive health. I believe that we have
eliminated copays for preventive procedures, which should
increase preventive health.

Canadians don't get their health care via their employer.
Private insurers do not exist in Canada offering comprehensive
health benefits. There are province-wide caps on spending in
Canada. And these are four major elements of the Canadian
system that are not at least in this discussion draft.

So that I would just like to make crystal clear that this
is an attempt to save money, as they say, bend the curve, and
also a question to make sure that everybody contributes.
Beneficiaries will contribute. Employers will contribute.
Taxpayers will probably end up contributing. And providers
certainly will.

Dr. Gratzer has suggested that physicians ought to set
their own prices. They are currently the highest-paid group of
people in America, averaging substantially over $250,000 a
year, many making $6 or $700,000 a year. And I have repeatedly
said I fail to extend much sympathy to the $600,000-plus
physicians who are back here looking for more, particularly in
this time when so many Americans are just looking for a job.

So that I think we have to move ahead. One of the things
that was in this——whoever wrote this silly $3 trillion analysis
managed to miss 500 pages of the text, and I wonder what else
they missed, because they didn't talk about the savings in the
bill.

And also, I must say, in the analysis they said that in
contrast to the Senate version, our version is more fiscally
prudent and effective. Now, given that CBO has scored the
Senate version at around 1 to 1.6, this certainly indicates
that we are doing a lot better.

So I hope we can continue to analyze the bill, and try and
keep our analysis of it somewhat close to reality, and come up
with a bill that will end up having more than 95 percent of the
American public with an affordable quality access to medical
care.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you, Chairman Stark.

I would like to recognize Mr. Herger, who has spent quite a
bit of his legislative career working on health reform.

Mr. HERGER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Gratzer, advocates of a government-run care program
often point to Canada as a model for the U.S. to follow.
However, your experience shows that many Canadians can't find a
family physician, and those that do often face long waits if
they need followup care. In fact, some patients even die while
waiting to receive treatment.

Could you please elaborate?

Dr. GRATZER. I thank the Member for the question. There is
such a severe physician shortage in Canada that there are small
towns where if you win the local lottery, you don't get money
to pay off your mortgage. You don't get a boat. You don't get a
new house. You get a trip to the family doctor.
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One in six Canadians, according to the government's own
statistics, are actively looking for a family doctor and can't
find one, the shortage is so severe.

Even the Supreme Court of Canada--arguably, by the way, one
of the most liberal supreme courts in the western world—--wrote
in a decision, writing for the majority, according to the chief
justice, that access to wait lists is not access to health
care.

The Canadian system rations. The British system rations.
The Swedish system rations. Right across the board, you see the
same thing——not according to my statistics or right-wing think
tank statistics; according to even their government statistics.

Now, the question is, is any of this relevant today? And
Mr. Stark has suggested that it is irrelevant because we are
just talking about a public plan. But a public plan would
inevitably lead to a government plan, and inevitably lead to a
further skewing of the field, 120 million Americans taking up
public insurance, and ultimately you are well on your way to a
Canadian-style system. That is the danger.

Look north of the 49th parallel, and you don't find a
compassionate system. You find people waiting, and to use your
words, in some cases dying.

Mr. HERGER. Thank you. On a different issue, competitive
effectiveness research, if done right, can be an important
source of trustworthy information for patients and doctors. I
am concerned, however, that if it is done wrong, it could take
us down the path of countries like the U.K., where government
agencies get in the middle of the doctor-patient relationship
and decide whether or not to cover a medical treatment based
solely on its cost.

I have introduced bipartisan legislation that would
prohibit the Federal Government from using competitive
effectiveness research to make cost-based coverage
determinations, while also ensuring that research is conducted
transparently and with adequate opportunity for public comment.

Dr. Gratzer, do you believe it is important for health
reform legislation to include these kinds of safeguards to
protect the doctor-patient relationship?

Dr. GRATZER. Absolutely. I am a huge believer in studying
what is effective and what isn't. You know, in my other life I
am a practicing physician. As a psychiatrist, I tap the CATIE
study funded by the NIMH all the time. It was a direct head-to-
head comparison of different anti-psychotics. It literally
influences my practice every day. That is funding that worked
and helped people.

On the other hand, one must be enormously careful not to
follow the examples of countries like Britain, where you have a
committee of really smart, well-meaning people who end up
making decisions that they ought not to. There is a right way
of doing this and a wrong way of doing this. I fear in the
stimulus bill we took the wrong tack. But I applaud your
efforts and the bipartisanship it has enjoyed. That is the
right way we ought to do it.

Health care is a black box. We are power consumers. No
matter whether you agree with a single payer system or a
government-run system or, as you and I do, a more private
system, we need to inform individuals more correctly—-—not
through government rationing committees, but through better
information to consumers.

Mr. HERGER. Dr. Gratzer, again, thank you very much. I
believe we all agree——Republican, Democrat, whoever we are——
that the system needs to be fixed. But it needs to be repaired
and fixed in a way that is going to make it better, not make it
worse. So thank you very much for your testimony.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman RANGEL. I would like to recognize a senior Member
of our Committee, Sandy Levin.

Mr. LEVIN. Well, we are having, I guess, a grand debate. So
let's continue it.

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CHRG-111hhrg62998/html/CHRG-111hhrg62998 .htm 26/304



1/18/24, 12:06 PM - HEALTH REFORM IN THE 21ST CENTURY: PROPOSALS TO REFORM THE HEALTH SYSTEM

Dr. Gratzer, in your testimony you say—-I think you mean it
humorously——-the honored scientific observation that if it walks
like a duck and it quacks like a duck, it is a duck. We are not
talking about a duck. It is a straw man.

I live next to Windsor. We are not proposing a Canadian
system, and there is no way we are going to allow the opponents
of reform to mischaracterize what we are proposing.

You talk about the rationing of health care in Canada or in
Britain. One of the problems is, and we have a strong health
care system in some respects, but the present American system
rations health care. There is a horrible difference in the
availability of health care for Americans in this country. And
we have a system that needs reform.

I think you said you are a libertarian. You say it
straight. Essentially, you talk about the American system. That
includes Medicare. You essentially would dismantle Medicare. I
think you would.

You talk about price controls. We instituted some control
of reimbursement costs for hospitals in Medicare. You would
turn that over to, essentially, competition without any
government role. At least that alternative is said essentially
straight. But America has essentially rejected it. They don't
think Medicare is a Canadian system of health care.

So if there is any hope for a bipartisan approach, and I
hope there is, to reform our health care system, it will not be
possible if the main effort of those who oppose what we are
proposing is caricature. This is not a duck. That is a straw
man.

And I want to say to Mr. Camp, it is true we do not at this
point indicate how we will pay for it. And you bring out a
study——I don't know, really, its origin——about 3\1/2\ trillion.
We will see what CBO says. But I don't think that kind of a
study should scare us into inaction.

And you also mentioned the problem of where both the
couples, both work. You know, from Michigan, we should be
sensitive to that because we have had a system where both
people work. Essentially, one employer is paying all the costs
for both people. And in 1993-1994, a plan that did not succeed
attempted to address that. And I think it is important that we
face up to the issue, but without caricaturing what it is all
about.

So Dr. Gratzer, you say that there can't be fair
competition with government involvement. We will see. The
reason that we have proposed focusing on reform and then
focusing on how we pay for it is because the system needs to be
revised.

The reimbursement structure today that we have in Medicare
and beyond for physicians is totally unworkable. It is totally
unworkable. And what our proposal does is attempt to begin to
address an unworkable system and an unfair system of physician
reimbursement.

And those of us on the majority side want us to examine how
we go even further. And I think to say that a public plan is
socialism or is Canadian misses the point. We want a public
plan in part so that there will be more competition to address
issues of reform. That is one of the strengths of a proposal
that includes an option for a public plan.

Mr. CAMP. Mr. Levin, would you yield briefly? You used the
words characterizing your plan. I am just trying to find out
what it says.

Mr. LEVIN. I said caricature.

Mr. CAMP. Caricature. On page 115, it says, "~ "The employer
shall make a timely contribution to the health insurance
exchange if an employee declines such offer but obtains
coverage in an exchange.''

So my read of the plain language of the bill is that an
employer will be required to make that 8 percent. We can debate
whether that is the right thing to do. I think at this hearing
we are just trying to find out what does the bill do.
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Mr. LEVIN. Okay. Let me take back my time. Let's talk about
that issue without caricaturing the plan.

It is a problem where both work, and one employer is paying
insurance for both. That is a problem. Let's discuss this on a
bipartisan basis, whether the present proposal adequately
addresses it or not. But don't caricature that provision or any
other provision.

For you to come here and essentially say what we are
proposing is a Canadian system is dead wrong.

Chairman RANGEL. The Chair would like to recognize a
continuous service hero, Sam Johnson.

Mr. JOHNSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Pollitz, you state in your testimony, " “Defining a
national standard for health insurance is crucial,'' and that,
““an essential benefit package is necessary.''

I was wondering if you think the benefit package should
include acupuncture like they do in California?

Ms. POLLITZ. No. I think we could get by without that.

Mr. JOHNSON. No? Should it be required to cover the cost of
prosthetic devices, as it is in New Jersey and California?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes. I think prosthetic devices are very
important for people with disabilities and would be needed.

Mr. JOHNSON. How about covering in vitro fertilization
costs?

Ms. POLLITZ. I am not sure I have an opinion on that.

Mr. JOHNSON. Well, you know, a health insurance policy in
New Jersey costs significantly more than a policy in the
Midwest mainly because of excessive mandates. And I am
concerned that our government bureaucrats in D.C., who in this
bill are tasked with making decisions on what to include in an
essential benefits package, will include too many mandates.

Dr. Gratzer, isn't it likely, by giving all this power to
one individual, they will succumb to the same pressures that
landed New Jersey into their high cost health coverage
situation?

Dr. GRATZER. Or New York or so many States. You know, I
walk out of the think tank in New York City, and if I wanted to
buy a policy out of the individual market, I would pay three
times more for a policy, as you know, than I would if I took
the Metro north 45 minutes to Connecticut. Three times more for
a policy that covers basically the same stuff for me.

So absolutely, these mandates, built with the best of
intentions, drive up costs. And we see them right across the
United States. And the danger with a health insurance exchange
with some czar of regulation is that we just keep adding and
adding and adding until we get to the point, like New York
State, where you have the most fair and equitable policy
available. Just no one can afford it.

Mr. JOHNSON. Yes. You are right. But, you know, we could
have a health czar that could solve all those problems. Right?

Ms. POLLITZ. Mr. Johnson.

Mr. JOHNSON. Yes.

Ms. POLLITZ. I just wanted to correct one thing for the
record. Health insurance in New York and New Jersey is more
expensive than in most other States because those two States
require health insurance companies to sell coverage to people
and to leave coverage with people when they are sick. And in
all other States in the individual market, that is not the
case. The pool excludes people who are sick.

I live in the State of Maryland, which is recognized as
being the champion State of health insurance mandates. I
believe we have more in Maryland than any other State. And yet
individual policies are much cheaper in Maryland than they are
in New Jersey, again for that very same reason———-

Mr. JOHNSON. Private insurance.

Ms. POLLITZ [continuing]. That sick people can't buy the
coverage.

Mr. JOHNSON. Private insurance, though.

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes. Private insurance.
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Mr. JOHNSON. Oh, okay. But we are about to overturn that,
are we not?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes. I hope you are.

Mr. JOHNSON. Dr. Gratzer, your experience in the Canadian
health care system seems to suggest reform that focuses on
guaranteeing coverage. And it won't necessarily produce a
quality health care delivery system. And your testimony also
speaks to the fact that Canadians can't find a family
physician, and those that do often face long waits if they need
followup care. And I am told also that in Canada, some lottery
winner accesses a physician.

You know, I am not sure that this type of system, and I
think we are having trouble in this country, too, finding
primary care physicians. Would you comment?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, undoubtedly there are problems with
primary care access in the United States. Emergency room care
also is problematic in terms of overcrowding. But in our
efforts to achieve better reform, we should be careful not to
end up worsening the system.

There is no plan right now put forward by Congress for
single payer option before this Committee. And yet when you are
going to suck up 120 million people out of private plans and
put them into a government system, I fear that is the road we
are going down.

I know that your colleague is very concerned that I would
take apart Medicare were I to be elected President. And for the
record, because of constitutional limitations, I will not be
running in 2012. But it doesn't matter what I am going to do
because who cares what I really want to do? The question is
what you guys are going to do because you are in this
important, august Committee and before Congress.

And what you should be careful of is looking at this
temptation of government and expanding Washington's reach
because inevitably, you get to systems like you see in Canada
or Britain or across western Europe.

Canada, incidentally, didn't start with a single payer
system. Canada started with hospital construction grants in the
1950s, and then hospital insurance in the 1960s, built, by the
way, to compete against private plans; and then physician
reimbursement in the 1970s. And then finally, in 1984 because
costs kept rising and so many people were in the public system
anyway, they just went out and banned private coverage
altogether.

That is the path that I fear Congress is starting to walk
down with this draft legislation, sir.

Mr. JOHNSON. I agree with you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman RANGEL. It is amazing how the language in
opposition to this bill is basically the same language that was
heard with Medicaid and Medicare: Keep government out of it.
And now it has proven to be one of the most efficient delivery
of services.

No one understands this problem better in the Congress than
Dr. Jim McDermott. And I thank him for the great contribution
he has made over the years, and I know he is thankful that the
moment has come to change the inequities. Dr. McDermott.

Mr. MCDERMOTT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The President has said that cost is the real problem here.
Access is much easier to deal with than controlling costs. And
I want to talk to you, Dr. Quentin Young, who I have known for
not the whole 61 years you have practiced medicine in Chicago,
but certainly a whole lot of them.

And one of the things you said was that you thought that
this plan that we have before us would put the sick people in
the government option and leave the healthy ones for the
private insurance industry.

Now, we built in guaranteed access so anybody can get into
both a private plan or the public option. We said there can be
no exclusion for preexisting conditions in either the public
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plan or the private plan.

How do you think the insurance companies will push the sick
ones, as they do presently-—how are they going to get around
this bill and push the sick ones into the government plan and
leave the healthy ones who pay premiums but don't get any
benefits?

Dr. YOUNG. Well, the recent history, I mean, the last 20 or
30—

Mr. MCDERMOTT. Hit your button.

Dr. YOUNG. Thank you very much. The recent history of our
national experience with private insurance is the answer to
your question. Private insurance has legendary skills in
turning any system to their selective advantage. Speaking of
Medicare, a superb achievement and still the brightest star on
the insurance horizon in this country, nevertheless it has been
compromised by the insurance skill, sometimes aided with
congressional bills.

They have such things as Medicare Advantage. As you are
probably aware, the President has said he wants to end that
scam, which briefly creates a separate pool with a 12 percent
subsidy per capita. And the insurance companies have
dramatically been able to attract people who are under the
Medicare average as incoming patients, and people when they
leave the plan remarkably are much higher than average and they
go to the public side.

I would describe Medicare Part D, the so-called drug
benefit, which is a catastrophe for people who need to buy a
lot of drugs, as an example of the big PhRMA creating its
tentacles around a much-needed program. It was tragic that
Medicare enacted in 1965 was a spectacular breakthrough, but
remarkably it had no drug benefit. And I think that was an
industry that was able to influence the legislation at the
time.

So my answer, Congressman, is that they are good at that
and they will continue to do it. And I want to expand a little
bit in answer to your question. The problem in this country is
not government medicine. It is private insurance. And private
insurance isn't health. It is a business. And it is remarkably
skilled. Everybody knows we are talking about one-sixth of the
whole gross domestic product.

And let me give another figure that doesn't seem to be
coming up here. We are spending twice per capita, something in
the neighborhood of 8,000 per person in this country, for our
health system, despite the fact that we have, as we all know,
45 going on 50 million uninsured.

And I hasten to add, before somebody adds for me, that that
doesn't mean they don't get any care. Indeed, they frequently
get very expensive care in the ER. But the point is they are
not covered. And 50 million more are underinsured.

And we have—--the other nations of the world, which I am not
their representative but I have to defend them, the
achievements of everyone in the countries that have been
revolved for government medicine are spectacular and much more
popular with their nation.

The Canadians, for example, when polled, 96 percent prefer
their system to the American system, which they know. The
border is very porous. As Congressman Levin would point out,
they know what they have and they know what we have, and they
like theirs 96 to 4. People have pointed out 4 percent is the
same percentage of Canadians who think Elvis Presley is alive,
but that is not———-

Mr. MCDERMOTT. Can I get you to focus on one other issue?

Dr. YOUNG. Please.

Mr. MCDERMOTT. And that is how does a single payer system
control costs? Dr. Gratzer says that the Canadian system
ultimately was—--the costs were getting out of control, and so
ultimately they passed the umbrella law in Canada to control
costs.

Dr. YOUNG. Well, I think single payer is the only
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arrangement for payment that allows you to control costs. As is
well known, there are great variations in activities of
doctors, good faith and not in good faith--too many operations,
not enough operations, depending on the incentive.

The single payer system, because everything is paid for
through a single payer, identifies doctors' practice patterns.
And that is used as a guide to best practices, not Big Brother
standing over you repeatedly saying, you can or cannot do this.
Usually that is ascribed to the British system, erroneously or
dishonestly.

But when you have control of all the transactions, which is
by definition what a single payer system does, you can see
abnormalities. And there are, Congressman, huge variations in
this country that can't be explained rationally by the various
public health areas of this country. I think there are 11 of
them.

There are variations in, for example, hysterectomy, as
three is to one. Now, some may be doing too many; some may be
doing too little. But best medical practice has to be sought.
The single payer system allows you to identify these patterns.

And the great tradition of medicine, going all the way
back, of using experience to define behavior can be implemented
because you have the knowledge. In a multi-payer system with
the variety of inhibitions and other distortions of
utilizations, you don't know.

And as a result, we American people don't--despite the fact
that yes, ours is the best in the world when you can get it,
there are tens of millions of people that can't get near that
best. And that is why we are here and you are here.

But I want to, if I may, as an extension of my answer, end
the myth that private is good and public is bad. It ill
behooves the Congress, who enacted it, to neglect the
superiority of the NIH, for example, the best system in the
world for stimulating research, and is the reason for America's
primacy in biomedicine.

And indeed, the VA system, which now sets the standards for
quality for the whole world, and I would add military medicine,
with its mission defined, it is fantastic the achievements they
have been able--these are all government medicine. For the
naysayers, I would like them to find whether they want to
abolish VA and Medicare.

And so my experience, those 61 years you were talking
about, by and large the private control of finances is bad. I
can't name a single improvement that is a result of putting
health insurance in the hands of the private sector.

So I would plead that this Committee have an orientation
that seeks to bring health care to all the American people at
the best price, and even if it means bucking against right-wing
criticism of government medicine. Thank you.

Mr. MCDERMOTT. The Chairman is being more than generous.

Dr. YOUNG. I know. And I have been generous, but I have
been outnumbered.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you. Thank you so much for your
contribution.

The Chair would like to recognize Mr. Ryan, who has
authored a bill to attempt to deal with this problem.

Mr. RYAN. Thank you, Chairman.

A couple of points I think we ought to dig into in this
Committee. And hopefully we can have some more hearings on this
because this is obviously probably the most important subject
we are going to tackle here this year.

The one point is, we oversee Medicare in this Committee,
and the trustees have just told us that Medicare right now has
a $38 trillion unfunded liability. So we can talk about how
efficient that system is. The system is going broke in just a
few short years. And if we want it to be there for the
generations alive today, we would have to literally set aside
$38 trillion invested at Treasury rates in order to pay the
bills for Medicare.
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And the question we ought to be asking ourselves is: Are we
creating a new program, a new entitlement program, that will
rival the size and liabilities of Medicare? And what is
unfortunate about this debate is we are not going to get scores
outside of the 10-year window.

Yes, we will probably in a number of days get scores from
CBO and Joint Tax showing us what this thing will cost in 10
years. But they are not going to give us—--and we have already
been asking for them——they are not going to give us scores of
what it will cost in the out years.

So I think it is just a point worth making because we ought
to know what kind of liabilities we are creating here and what
kind of new entitlement this will be in its size.

The second point, and I would like to get into something
with you, Dr. Gratzer, is I will take my colleagues at their
word that their goal here is not to create a Canadian-style or
a British-style system. Unfortunately, just looking at this
bill from an actuarial standpoint, from a mathematical
standpoint, I believe it is impossible to conclude that this
does not create such a system. And here is why we believe this
point.

No. 1, a public plan as designed in this bill has such a
stacked deck, has such a huge competitive advantage over the
private sector, it is impossible to conclude that the private
sector won't buckle under this kind of a confrontation.

What are the advantages? Well, the public plan doesn't have
to pay taxes. The private sector does. The public plan gets to
dictate the prices it pays to providers. We are going to cut
Medicare by, I don't know, $4 or $500 billion, and then pay 5
percent above that for 5 years, and then Medicare after that.
The private sector doesn't get to dictate its prices it pays to
providers.

And the other issue is the private sector does have to have
capital reserves set aside. The public plan doesn't have to do
that. The private sector does have to pay for and account for
its employees and their benefit and wage costs. The public plan
does not have to do that.

So there are enormous, enormous advantages. It is kind of
like my 7-year-old daughter's lemonade stand competing against
McDonald's. It is an impossible stacked deck whereby actuarial
firm after actuarial firm, expert after expert, are telling us
what is going to end up happening here is the private sector
will not be able to compete with the public plan.

And remember, the people who decide for the most part who
gets health insurance in this country are the employers.
Individuals don't choose this. Employers choose this. And most
people in this country like their employer-sponsored care. Most
people would like to keep what they have.

But the talking point, that if you like what you have, you
can keep it, just doesn't add up when all these actuaries are
telling us, an employer faced in a situation of ever—higher-
growing prices for their private insurance, because of the
overwhelming advantage of the public plan, will be faced with.

Pay the 8 percent payroll tax that is indexed at inflation,
which is predictable—--they can budget for that-—or pay this
unpredictable, ever-higher—growing private health cost. And
what are all the employers telling us? They are going to dump
their people on the public plan. And that is what the actuaries
are telling us. All of the actuaries are telling us this.

So it is not a number. It is not a measure of whether it is
going to be 120 million people or 64 million people or 23
million people. What it is is people are going to get dumped
onto the public plan, and we will have a new program which will
rival the size and liabilities of Medicare.

And my question, Dr. Gratzer, is this: If the intention of
this thing is not to have Canadian-style health care today, the
clear trajectory of this plan is that it will be Canadian-style
health care tomorrow. And the authors of this claim that this
is better to get our hands on health care costs.
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So in the out years, we are worried. Medicaid, Medicare,
and then this new entitlement which I don't think we have a
name for this yet, will be so expensive we are going to have to
contain costs in order to, you know, make sure that the next
generation doesn't get swallowed up in debt and high taxes.

And my question is this: Under those models, do they
contain the costs? I mean, we know rationing is the method of
containing costs. But even with all of this rationing, even
with all of these waiting lines, do they actually achieve the
cost containment that these goals are intended to achieve?

Dr. GRATZER. Congressman Ryan, you ask a great question.
Undoubtedly we are concerned about cost inflation of the
private system in the United States, but also the public system
in the United States.

I would point out, though, when you look across western
Europe and you look across Canada and their experiences with
public health care, one finds cost containment isn't as great
as one would assume. I will throw out some numbers, and you
will find them also in my written statement.

Ontario's health budget is growing by 7 percent over the
next 3 years, Quebec 6 percent. In Britain, I will say 60 years
of data where health inflation has outstripped real inflation
by 3 percent, on average, every year. In Ireland, my last
statistic, one finds that they actually had de-inflation this
May of-—-they had 3.5 percent de-inflation this May, and yet
health costs are growing at an annualized rate of 4.5 percent.

My friend Shakira Delmia has done 30 years' worth of
analysis, and suggested at best a mixed picture on public
containment of costs. But you still have the rationing, the
waiting lists, and the lack of availability of modern care.

Mr. RYAN. Medicare is at 6\1/2\, Medicaid is at 7\1/2\.
Thank you.

Chairman RANGEL. Well, I think all of you have done a
pretty good job of trashing the health care system in Canada
and in Ireland and in Europe generally. But by unanimous
consent, I would like, Mr. Ryan, to introduce a solution for
the record because one of the things that we need is to find
out, if not this bill, what?

I would like to recognize Mr. Neal. But before I do, I want
to make it clear that we have a vote on the floor, and the
Ranking Member and I agreed that to the best we can, we will
keep the Committee going and rotate. And since this is a single
vote, those who want to go and come back, this would be the
right time to do it.

And Mr. Ryan, would you like to start your testimony or
vote or whatever?

Mr. NEAL. We share a similar background, Mr. Chairman,
but-——-Mr. Neal and Mr. Ryan. You called me Mr. Ryan.

Chairman RANGEL. I am so sorry.

Mr. NEAL. I was just about to give him a bad time, and he
left.

[Laughter.]

Mr. NEAL. Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I find it ironic that our
friends on the other side all of a sudden profess this newfound
interest in adding to the deficit. Their Medicare legislation
in 2003 added $500 billion to the deficit. Two point three
trillion dollars of their tax breaks for wealthy people were
added to the deficit.

The war in Iraq is headed toward a trillion dollars added
to the deficit, much of it borrowed money. And for them to
complain today all of a sudden with this newfound conscience of
debt spending I think falls by the wayside under the magnifying
glass of critical analysis.

Let me, if I can—--because a couple of you have mentioned
Massachusetts——let me give you the framework, as an architect
might. The Massachusetts plan was proposed by a Republican
Governor who launched a campaign for President in some measure
based upon that plan; a legislature that is—-I think there are
four or five Republicans in the State Senate. There are 19 in
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the House of Representatives out of 160. But the Governor did
it with a Democratic legislature.

The plan was blessed by Senator Kennedy, whose credentials
on that I think are unrivaled in the Congress. And there have
been some bumps. I don't think anybody would argue with that
notion. However, it has been well met by business, labor, and
advocates across the State. And in fact, the argument might be
made, I think with accuracy, that the uninsured part of the
population has decreased dramatically, the suggestion being
that there is some skin in the game for everybody.

So with that, Ms. Pollitz, could you perhaps give us some
thoughts about that plan based on your knowledge?

Ms. POLLITZ. Well, John and his colleagues have studied it
far more closely than I.

Mr. NEAL. Let me go back to Dr. Holahan, then.

Ms. POLLITZ. But it is a terrific success, what has been
accomplished in Massachusetts. It is 3 years in the making.
There are certainly still some growing pains. Not every problem
has been worked out, but the State has achieved a coverage rate
now of 98 percent.

Employer-sponsored coverage has increased. Individual
responsibility, individual purchase of coverage, has increased.
They have expanded public programs and created new subsidies
for private coverage similar to what is in the draft bill
today. People are overwhelmingly supportive of the program and
are willing to do their part, and have really kind of stepped
up to make it work as well as it has, which is most impressive.

Mr. NEAL. About 97 percent of the people of Massachusetts
are covered right now.

Dr. Holahan, would you comment, please?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think Karen covered the most important
things. I think there is a set of surveys that have been done
annually that have tracked what has happened, and they continue
to show reductions in out-of-pocket costs and burdens that
families are facing and improvements in access on almost all
measures.

And so I think in addition to gaining coverage, I think on
other things that you care about in terms of measuring the
success of a program, Massachusetts has done quite well.

In the early years, there was a jump in costs that was
alarming to a lot of people. But a lot of that was explained by
the fact that sicker—-than-average people were the first to
join; that the people who were fully subsidized as opposed to
partially subsidized were the first to join; and they
miscounted the number of uninsured low-income people they are
dealing with because of survey issues.

But I think that has generally slowed down. I think the
State does face long-run cost issues that they are going to
have to wrestle with. But, you know, on balance it has been a
big, big success.

Mr. NEAL. Thank you.

Dr. Gratzer, would you list Medicare as one of the maybe
top 20 legislative accomplishments in American history?

Dr. GRATZER. I think Medicare did an enormous amount to
help elderly Americans.

Mr. NEAL. Would you say that it was successful?

Dr. GRATZER. I would say that aspects of it have been
enormously successful, though there are cost problems today and
there are cost problems around reimbursement and other aspects.

Mr. NEAL. During your medical training, did you receive any
reimbursement under graduate medical education from Medicare?

Dr. GRATZER. I actually did my training in another country,
sir, so the answer would be no. But many of my colleagues did,
absolutely.

Mr. NEAL. Would most of your colleagues professionally have
received some benefit under Medicare under GME?

Dr. GRATZER. I would suspect all of them did.

Mr. NEAL. I didn't say that. I said would most of them.

Dr. GRATZER. I suspect all of them, yes. I agree.
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Mr. NEAL. Okay. How would you handle the GME portion of
Medicare now?

Dr. GRATZER. I think that is a topic for another day. And I
am, to be blunt, not a Medicare expert. But I would suggest
that both in the public system and the private system, we have
enormous difficulties.

We see costs rise in both systems, costs that are
unsustainable.

Mr. NEAL. I acknowledge that. My point is that Medicare has
been transformative. It has changed the way tens of millions of
people have lived their lives.

Dr. GRATZER. Absolutely.

Mr. NEAL. Overwhelmingly for the better, I think you might
acknowledge.

Dr. GRATZER. Absolutely.

Mr. NEAL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman RANGEL. I would like to leave on that positive
note, but Doctor, you have made it clear that we haven't
impressed you with our health reform plan. Has there been any
Republican plan offered to you to study that you would think
could do a better job?

Dr. GRATZER. I think there are a few proposals out there
that I like. And I don't think that there is one plan that
necessarily excites me. I think plans, particularly bipartisan
plans, that look at prevention and wellness excite me.

Chairman RANGEL. Could you tell me the author? Is the
Republican leadership supporting any one of these plans that
you find to your 1liking?

Mr. NEAL. There are aspects of different plans I like. I
mean, Congressman Ryan's plan about a tax credit I think has
some worth in it. I think on the Senate side, Senators Bennett
and Wyden have some exciting ideas that they are conveying.

Chairman RANGEL. Well, with all due respect to the Senate,
I really was trying to think of the House of Representatives
because right now we don't have much competing in terms of a
health program before us, even though we are getting more than
our share of criticism.

So since you and I are from New York, if in the course of
your thinking that you think there is something that we could
improve upon, I look forward to meeting with you in New York
and see what we could do.

Dr. GRATZER. I would be excited to draft something with
you. But as I suggested before, I think we need some policy
reform around health, not just health care. I think we need
some regulatory reform to increase competition on insurance
companies. And I also think we need some tax reform that
doesn't-—a system that won't discriminate against the self-
employed and the unemployed.

Chairman RANGEL. That goes unchallenged. The thing is, how
do we get together and do it?

Mr. Linder, thank you so much for your patience, and I
welcome the opportunity to allow you to ask questions.

Mr. LINDER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Ms. Pollitz, you referred to the Massachusetts model being
quite a success. Still have some problems to be worked out. The
States' overall costs on health programs have increased 42
percent since 2006. For an individual earning $31,213, the
cheapest plan in Massachusetts can be $9,800 in premiums and
out-of-pocket costs.

The longest wait times in Boston to see a physician, almost
50 days. Double the costs of-—double the time of Philadelphia.
The government-run Medicaid plan, MassHealth, denied the
highest share of medical claims in the State, four times more
than the private plans denied.

It has not reduced the rate of adults seeking non-emergency
care in an emergency room. Both before and after reform, 15
percent of adults and 23 percent of low-income adults sought
care in an emergency department.

Is that a success story?
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Ms. POLLITZ. I think, Congressman, Massachusetts has been a
success story and they clearly have not solved all the
problems. Massachusetts is unique, I think, from most other
States. They have always had, even prior to reform, very, very
high costs.

They have always had a particular shortage, I think, of
primary care physicians. Many of the best medical schools in
the country are located in Massachusetts, in Boston, and many
of the best medical schools around the country don't even have
a department of family medicine. They are just kind of too good
to train primary care physicians.

So there have been some structural problems that are
throughout the Nation that have been particularly intense in
the State of Massachusetts for a long time, even leading up to
reform. And they still have not all been addressed.

I was on a panel yesterday with someone from the
Commonwealth Connector, who talked about how tackling the cost
problem is particularly difficult in that State, that the
Boston area in particular is one where there has been not only
a high concentration of insurers but also a very high
concentration of providers.

And the competition between, you know, concentrated
providers and insurers you would think would be kind of, you
know, King Kong vs. Godzilla and someone would be lying on the
ground at the end, but that is not the case.

Instead, the high prices are demanded by the providers and
just passed through by the insurers. And they haven't yet been
able to get a handle on that. And what she testified yield was
that if there were a public plan option that were available in
addition to the mix of private plan options that they have made
available, that that might begin to change.

Mr. LINDER. Let me comment just briefly. But first of all,
Dr. Gratzer, do you have a comment on that?

Dr. GRATZER. I just want to add, you know, if you are
suggesting that costs haven't been contained in Massachusetts,
even she has acknowledged that. I will just throw out a few
figures in terms of the rise in health insurance premiums
between 2007 and 2009.

In Massachusetts, 7.4 percent, 2007; 8 to 12 percent, 2008;
and 9 percent is forecasted for this year. Outside of
Massachusetts, 6.1 percent, 4.7 percent, 6.4 percent for those
same years.

I would point out for a family of four in Massachusetts, a
health insurance plan now costs almost $17,000. Nationally, it
is closer to $12,500. Massachusetts has in no way, shape, or
form contained costs.

There are successes there, particularly, I think, for the
self-employed and those in the small business coverage pool.
But yes, costs have just continued to rise.

Mr. LINDER. Thank you. I want to comment on the public
plans. We have had testimony before this Committee in the past
that the typical small business spends about 12 percent of
their payroll on health care costs. Some of the bigger
companies with Cadillac plans spend as much as 14 to 18 percent
of their payroll.

We hear a lot of talk about choice, options. And the
President says, if you like your program today, you know you
will have to give it up. But we don't have--our citizens don't
make these choices. Their employers do. And if the employer can
pay 8 percent instead of 14 percent, my guess is he is going to
put the people on—in fact, that is what they tell us. They
will move their people to the public plan, and there will be no
choices left at all.

I don't know why this is considered such a good option. Dr.
Gratzer.

Dr. GRATZER. I agree.

Mr. LINDER. Thank you all. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you.

The Chair recognizes Mr. Becerra for 5 minutes.
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Mr. BECERRA. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I don't know if
these charts are ready or not, Mr. Chairman, so I think I will
just quickly run through them.

But in something Dr. Gratzer said earlier, I wanted to just
give him some food for thought. I am sure he is aware of this
already because he mentioned Canada and Great Britain.

I am looking at a chart of the infant mortality rates of
the leading industrialized countries of the world. And as I
look at this chart—-I don't know if we have it available, but
this, CRS-54, if it could be put up if we happen to have it; I
don't know if we do——the industrialized country with the
highest infant mortality rate of those industrialized rates,
Turkey.

After Turkey, Mexico. After Mexico and Turkey is the United
States. Well above Canada, well above the United Kingdom in
terms of the rates of infant mortality, in other words,
children, babies, who die early. So our infant mortality rate
is still very high compared to the two countries you rail
against, Canada and Great Britain.

When you take a look at the deaths from medical errors per
100,000 people in the country, the countries with the worst
record of having people die from medical errors are Greece,
Australia, and in third place, the United States, well above,
once again, the United Kingdom and Canada.

And so once again, we seem to be doing worse than Canada
and Great Britain when it comes to the deaths that occur in
this country simply as a result of medical errors.

When you take a look at mortality rates, how long do people
in our countries, respective countries, live, once again
comparing these industrialized countries, you take a look at
the worst mortality rate--or, excuse me, life expectancy rate
of people.

Turkey is least, has the lowest rate. So their average life
expectancy at birth is 71 years. There you see the United
States at 77\1/2\ years. Guess what? Once again, the United
Kingdom does better in letting people live longer than we do.
And guess what? So does Canada. And so——way up here. Canada is
way up here. The U.S. is way down here. And so perhaps there
are reasons to rail against what Canada and Great Britain do.

But I have to tell you, if you want to live longer, you
want to have a better chance of living when you first are born,
or you want to make sure you don't die from some basic medical
error, you may be better off living in some of these other
countries.

That is why, rather than come with a Canadian model or a
Great Britain model for American health care, we are coming up
with a uniquely American solution to that, which offers choice.

To the issue of choice, I guess it is in the terms of the
private for-profit health insurance companies because you seem
to be saying it is good to have competition so long as it is
only on the terms that the private insurance companies wish to
have, but not to have it on an equal basis business.

Because we talk about the fact that there are price
controls. Medicare, you said, Dr. Gratzer, is price control. I
would tell you that anybody who has a private health insurance
company insurance policy cannot go in and negotiate with that
insurance company on what they wish to pay for a doctor or
hospital. There are controls that are put in place by those
insurance companies that doctors have to accept, hospitals have
to accept, and certainly the consumers who asked to have those
insurance policies.

So I guess it is all in the definition, as I think the
Chairman tried to say with regard to the definition of what is
fair. I think most of us are going to try to make it so that it
is not you. It is not me. It is certainly not a private health
insurance company that is there for profit. And it shouldn't be
the government who determines your choice as a consumer. It
should be the consumer's choice.

So if you have a lot of different options where the
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consumer chooses which plan to select, then it makes no
difference. If you have an overly burdensome government plan,
as you would like to describe it, or if you have a very abusive
private health insurance plan, consumers won't have to go in
that direction. They can go anywhere they want.

And so no one need fear being dumped, as some would say,
into any particular plan because it is not anyone's choice
where to send that consumer but the consumer's. That is
hopefully what this unique American solution to health care
will provide us.

But Dr. Holahan, I wanted to see if I could ask you one
question. With regard to this choice, can you have real choice
when you have a private sector insurance system where in most
geographical areas of the country there is very little choice
for consumers because most areas of the country only have one
or two health insurance providers to begin with that offer
coverage to Americans.

And can you really have choice if you shackle, as I think
Dr. Gratzer would do to the public health insurance plan, the
opportunity to compete on a level basis, no advantage to the
public health insurance option?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think that is a good point. In many parts of
this country, there really is only one choice.

Chairman RANGEL. Doctor, I hope you might be able to submit
your answer in writing to the Committee. The gentleman from
California's time has expired, and we have a very long, long
day ahead of us.

The Chair would like to recognize Ms. Brown-Waite from
Florida for 5 minutes.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, and I
thank the panelists for being here.

When we look at the Ways and Means Committee, you would
think that we would be looking at ways and means to pay for
this, but when subtitle D says, "~ "to be provided,'' I just
wanted to list some of the suggestions thus far and get your
reaction to them, if anyone on the panel wants to jump in. One
is tax your employer for providing health insurance; two, tax
your employer for not providing health insurance, tax you for
owning health insurance, tax you for not owning health
insurance, tax you for spending your money on health, tax you
for saving your money for future health-related expenditures,
tax you for drinking soda and other sweetened beverages, tax
you for having an alcoholic beverage, tax you for making
charitable contributions, tax mortgage interest payments,
increase personal income taxes, energy, pollution tax as a part
of the cap and trade taxes, increase taxes on American
companies doing business overseas, increase taxes on domestic
oil and gas production, raise taxes on o0il or natural gas
obtained from the Gulf of Mexico, raise taxes on domestic oil
refineries, raise taxes on drilling equipment, raise taxes on
prescription drugs, increase taxes on dividend income, and just
last night I put--I have about eight more. I will not go
through them, but I can just tell you that Americans right now
in this economy are very concerned. Businesses in most of our
districts are having their lines of credit called, and when you
are talking about this kind of additional tax to cover this
kind of health care when estimates are that if this bill is
passed, about 120 million Americans will lose their health
care, I do not see where this is a win/win situation.

I would ask——and I apologize, I do not——Ms. Pollitz, I will
just go from one end of the panel to the other end because I
obviously will run out of time, I would like to have your
reaction to this?

Ms. POLLITZ. Actually, if you would not mind,
Congresswoman, I would defer to Dr. Holahan. I know they are
doing some research on options for funding health care.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. Okay.

Mr. HOLAHAN. Well, that was a pretty amazing list. I think
some of those things have to be on the table. I think that what
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we call sin taxes, I think a cap probably starting at least at
a high level on the employer exclusion and some of the other
things that you mentioned. And certainly we should exploit all
the possibilities for savings that we can, including trying to
reform the way we deal with chronic illness.

I just want to make a point because the issue of the cost
of reform has come up several times. There is a huge cost if
you do nothing. We published a paper about a month ago called,
"“Health Reform: The Cost of Failure.'' If there is nothing—--no
reform, the number of uninsured could go up into the mid-60's,
65 million roughly in the worst case. The employer—sponsored
coverage will drop quite a bit. The number of people going on
Medicaid will expand, that is a cost to government. The number
of uninsured will mean more uncompensated care that will have
to be financed.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. Sir, did you miss the part about 120
million will lose their coverage under the proposed plan?

Mr. HOLAHAN. No, that is not possibly right. That is
ridiculous.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. That is not possibly right?

Mr. HOLAHAN. No, it is ridiculous.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. You think it is ridiculous? Well, sir, I
really think that employers will be dropping their plan because
the 8 percent may be———-

Mr. HOLAHAN. But they offer it now and they pay no penalty,
right?

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. If they offer it now, there is still a
question about if someone is covered by the spouse's plan and
also the percent that they cover of the employee's plan. So I
think we need to be very careful where we go with this.

Dr. Gratzer, I would like to hear your comments?

Dr. GRATZER. With the 120 million figure, by the way, that
you just quoted is not something, as you know, out of a right-
wing think tank or plucked out of thin air but was a Lewin
Group analysis.

I would also point out that Professor Jacob Hacker, who
really came up with this idea of a public plan auction, he
called it Medicare Plus, as you will recall, in fact had worked
with the Lewin Group about 10 years or so ago as he designed
this specifically to pluck more than 100 million people out of
the private insurance market. So to suggest that that estimate
is wrong, it is designed to compete with and overshadow
eventually the private system.

Now, as for your list of taxes, I would simply say that we
are all concerned about health costs. It is curious how much
more we need to spend and how much more we need to tax to get
those costs under control. Needless to say, I share your bias,
we need a more focused plan, a plan that directly helps the
uninsured who need help, and a more innovative plan, for
instance with uncompensated care, trying to get over to the
States to let them innovate. But certainly spending so much
money that even Paul Klugman says, "~ “Well, it is not as much
money as the Bush tax cuts,'' is hardly a great plan for us to
endorse.

Ms. BROWN-WAITE. Thank you. I see my time has elapsed. With
that, I yield back my time.

Chairman RANGEL. The Chair recognizes Lloyd Doggett of
Texas to inquire.

Mr. DOGGETT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just picking up right
there, we are spending over $2 trillion on a health care system
now that leaves many Americans out, and we are proposing to
add, in order to ensure more Americans are covered, another
$100 billion a year to that system and to finance much of that
by squeezing some of the inefficiencies out of the existing
system. That is hardly spending gone wild.

The notion that compassion is a distinguishing
characteristic of the American health care system is a fantasy.
For those people who lack insurance, they do not find much
compassion in our current system. There is an estimate that
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22,000 people died in America last year because they did not
have health insurance. The notion that delay would be a feature
of our system because of the changes we propose in this
legislation ignores the fact that delay is a major
characteristic of the current system.

The American Cancer Society has estimated that an
individual who has cancer and no insurance has a 60 percent
greater chance of dying in America today because of the
““compassion'' that is in the American health care system.

And, of course, one of the hopes that we have with a public
plan is to squeeze some of the inefficiency out of that systenm,
which has more people in the American health care system today
who are not providing health care themselves directly than
those who are providing health care and a significant number of
people who spend every waking hour of their day trying to find
a way to deny health care to someone else.

Recently, we had testimony here in Congress that three
major insurance companies continue to engage in the practice of
recision, a practice where people who are paying their health
insurance premiums incur substantial bills and find out that
their insurance company has dropped them. That is
““compassion'' in the American system.

As far as independence is concerned, I am reminded of a
conversation I had out in south Austin with my constituent,
Laura Stager, who said, "My husband is entrepreneurial and
wants to own a business, but he tells me it would be
irresponsible for him to form his own company because we would
lose our health insurance.'' That is the independence of
forcing people to stay where they have insurance even though
that may not be the most productive use of their resources and
their talents.

I had another constituent, Mark Seefgan, talk to me about
what is happening to his small business and the difficulty of
dealing with a huge bureaucracy within the insurance industry
that seems to be bigger than anyone could imagine in Canada or
anywhere else in terms of the challenges to a small business
and how it is hard to explain to his employees that they just
got a $200 increase in their pay but Blue Cross took all of it
in increased health insurance premiums.

Are these problems, Ms. Pollitz, that my constituents face
in Austin, Texas and in other parts, do you find the same kind
of problems in other parts of the country?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes, sir, and that is how the private
insurance market competes. That is not compassion, that is
competition in the private insurance market. I was at that
hearing on rescission last week, and just yesterday, the
Governor of Connecticut vetoed a bill that was passed in her
State legislature to limit the rescission practice. And the
reason she vetoed it was she said that would raise premiums,
and so we need to let that practice continue because that is
what keeps health insurance cheap.

Clearly, we cannot continue to let health insurance compete
in that way. There has been a lot of talk about a level playing
field, we do not want to be on that playing field anymore. In
that playing field, the house wins every time. And we need to
compete on the basis of compassion. We need to put a plan in
place that is oriented toward patients and not profits and
stimulate the market to compete in that direction.

Mr. DOGGETT. Dr. Holahan, if we just pour more money into
the system that we have now, that permits rescission and this
kind of activity, and do not have an effective, meaningful
public plan, will we really have any reform of our health care
system at all?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think you could have some but the kind of
insurance reforms that this bill calls for, it would improve
things a great deal. I think the bigger problem is what I talk
about in my testimony, the lack of true competition. And if you
go back to the Massachusetts problem, the costs are growing at
levels that they are not going to be able to sustain but it is
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because of a very dominant hospital system, a very dominant
insurer, and the way they negotiate with each other. And that
problem exists around this country.

Mr. DOGGETT. Well, what is it with all these people who are
always here telling us in the rhetoric, " “Government cannot do
anything efficiently, government is broken,'' that they fear
something like a Medicare plan that does not pay Medicare rates
as one alternative to compete with these private insurance
companies?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think it fails typically to recognize what
really goes on in the market. And the idea that we should not
have price controls because the private system can negotiate
all this, that is what we have today. If you are in one market
and you are a strong insurer, and there are a lot of hospitals
with very little leverage, you get one outcome from those
negotiations. If the opposite is true, that you have a strong
hospital and many insurers or an insurer without enough
leverage, you get a very different outcome. Negotiations simply
are not working unfortunately. As an economist, I would prefer
to have the market work. No one can say that these markets meet
the conditions that you expect to get, the efficiency that you
would expect to get out of competitive markets. It just does
not exist.

Mr. DOGGETT. Thank you.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you. The Chair recognizes Mr. Davis
of Kentucky.

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just one
comment that Dr. Young made before going on with the questions,
he made the statement that the only way to control cost is a
single payer system, well, the mathematics simply do not work
on that. We have proven that in defense contracting here in the
United States, that the single contractor will ultimately drive
costs and overhead and likewise the former——our former
opponents of the Cold War learned that single State systems did
not tend to deliver quality, they ended up limiting capacity.

I am very concerned, and what I think many of us are really
struggling with here today is that we do not have the facts on
this bill, and we have been told this will be likely our only
hearing. And we are talking about entirely changing the
framework of health care in America with no debate of any
substance other than we think this is great.

This appears to be reform in name only because the actual
delivery cost drivers are not being touched at all. We are not
going to reform the CMS process and dramatically compress it,
which we could do to improve quality. We are not touching true
insurance reform on the process for how pooling is controlled.
And liability is not on the table at all, which drives a huge
portion of costs.

Do any of you have any idea how much this could cost, even
an approximate number, a range? Ultimately, we have to pay for
this, nothing is free, and since you are not going to actually
tamper with the system because you are convinced that the CMS
is to make Medicare basically the dominant market player here,
how are we going to control costs? We are mandating increases
in taxes, and we are mandating reduction in payment to
providers without dealing with the core engine. How much will
it cost?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Are you asking us to make a cost prediction?

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. Yes, just as a group. You all have
advocated this, I am just kind of curious how you actually pay
for it? I think the talk of compassion also has to be done with
realism. In Greek it means to " “suffer with.'' And I think that
if we are going to suffer with and come alongside the thousands
of people, who many of us help in our offices, we have to get
down to a legitimate understanding of the nature of the cost.

Dr. YOUNG. Well, I will take a percent at that. Presently,
we have about a 38 to 40 percent add-on by the bureaucratic
practices of the private insurance that add nothing to the
health care of the people, and indeed I think aggravates their
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problem. Recovering that money in the single payer system would
be a giant step forward for cutting costs.

I would like to add to the 1list the Congressmen and women
have made, that we have two big increases in health care needs
and costs in the form of aging of the population and increasing
bio-technical skills, which are costly.

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. Okay, I would like to reclaim my
time, Doctor, just because it is limited today. Still nobody
has actually answered the question with a number, and I believe
the reason we cannot answer the question with a number is there
are no true metrics that are framed. All of this at core has
been wrapped around the existing government system. Do any of
you know how many more Americans will be covered under this
bill when you actually factor in the millions estimated to lose
employer-sponsored coverage? Are there any numbers there?

Ms. POLLITZ. Mr. Davis, I am sorry, I am not a budget
estimator and I cannot answer those questions, but I would
suggest that there are very specific metrics in this bill and
that those should be--when the CBO finishes its work, they
should be able to give you—-——-

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. The initial CBO scoring on a sister
piece of legislation was well over $1 trillion for about the
first quarter of the bill. I am just concerned that you all
were propounding the benefits of this without laying out a true
cost before the American people. And I know many in my district
that would either lose coverage or not be covered in the
language that this is written.

Without the basic facts, how can you come here today to
support a bill and tell us it is going to lower costs and
increase access when those fundamental answers are not there?
That would be unacceptable in a business system. It would be
unacceptable from any type of appropriation from a contracting
standpoint too because of the precision that is required in
those areas.

Dr. Gratzer, do you have any thoughts on this?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, if you are advocating a CBO scoring
before you vote on it, I am on your side. I think we have to be
very cautious about this. I think that we can all agree there
are problems with American health care. On the other hand, (a)
I have significant issues with the way they are going about
reforming it. It is not just that the government plan would be
price controlled, but I do not see government's role as
providing competition in general to the private sector. I don't
particularly like my cell phone, but I do not think that the
goal then should be or the proposal should be that the Federal
Government create a new cell phone company to compete with
existing providers.

But, second, I think cost is a huge factor. And if you look
at some of the preliminary scoring, we are talking about well
over $1 trillion and still we would have uninsured and still
Medicare and Medicaid remain fundamentally the same.

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. My fear, Mr. Chairman, is that this
legislation is actually going to hurt the most those who it is
designed to help based on the economic realities of this. And
with that, I yield back my time.

Chairman RANGEL. Thank you. But I would just like to make
it clear, and I think everyone is in accord, you cannot say how
much it is going to take to pay for it until we have the
Congressional Budget Office give us the numbers. And then we
will have to determine how we are going to pay for it, and we
are not prepared to do it for now. We are not going to ask you
to vote for a bill unless it is fully paid for.

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. Mr. Chairman, may I respond?

Chairman RANGEL. Yes.

Mr. DAVIS OF KENTUCKY. Just respectfully I do not
understand how we can do a capital plan for the country without
actually understanding the magnitude of the capital required
before we begin to set priorities by effectively approving
legislation and then determining how to pay for it afterwards.
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Chairman RANGEL. Your questions are right on point, but
there is no bill before us to mark up. And we will have answers
for you when we ask for your vote. Right now, we are just
trying to make certain that we perfect this. We would not dare
ask you to support something without knowing how we are going
to pay for it but this is not the forum.

The Chair recognizes the gentlemen from Dakota, Earl
Pomeroy——North Dakota.

Mr. POMEROY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The difficulty of
conducting even this hearing in the middle of all these delayed
votes I think is reflective of the fact that the minority
participation in trying to build a health reform package is
more focused on delay and disruption rather than making some
meaningful contribution. I am still frustrated that our meeting
last week was canceled, the joint bipartisan meeting to discuss
the architecture of the plan, because we were on the floor with
procedural votes.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. POMEROY. No, I will not yield. I have 5 minutes, and I
have all kinds of votes going on, I have to run and vote, so I
have to get my question in.

I think there is a contribution, I would say this to the
good doctor who was just seeking time, we want to make this
thing work. And we believe that the status quo has gotten out
of control cost inflation that is wrecking our health care
system and threatening our Federal budget. So especially I
would be interested in ideas, referenced for example by my
friend, Congressman Davis, in his questions, he alluded briefly
to CMS payment reform. So if you have ideas about cost
containment you want to put on the table, whether or not you
are for the final bill, I think these are legitimate ideas we
need to study carefully and include where they have merit. And
that would be a much better way to proceed than simply throwing
the usual lines of attack that this is on the one hand going to
cost too much, on the other hand, it is going to do too little,
and we are going to have rationing somewhere in between. This
is not helpful. Let's work together and build a good deal, and
let's focus, among other things, on system reform that contains
costs. I believe that that is absolutely critical.

Now, another thing my friend Mr. Davis said was he thinks
this bill is going to do too little to help those who need the
help the worst. On this one, I believe that he is completely
mistaken. The strength of the bill is going to be getting
coverage to those who do not have coverage, 45 million there,
and assisting at least as many, and maybe even more, that are
struggling mightily to keep their present coverage in place in
the face of rapidly rising costs.

One of the strategies by which premiums have been paid is
to shrink basically the coverage you are buying. And so it is
interesting that recent bankruptcy statistics show the high
number of bankruptcies caused by medical costs and the high
number of people in that bankrupt situation that had insurance
but the co-pays, the deductibles, the out-of-pockets in the end
proved too much to handle.

And so as a former insurance commissioner myself, I have
seen you paying more and more for less and less, more and more
for less and less and the health security of everybody, those
with insurance and without insurance, has been placed squarely
at risk.

Now, one of the things I believe Congress has done when
talking about health reform over the years is we focus on the
intermediary, the insurance layer, and we do not get right down
to cost drivers. And I believe we need to spend a lot of time
dealing with cost drivers.

Dr. Holahan, if I understand your testimony, it is that the
public plan option is a new competitive element in the
marketplace, not just to offer another insurance alternative,
but maybe they will be able to try some things that more
effectively give value to the consumers than the conventional
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options. I think those that are opposing a public plan option
have to explain to taxpayers why we are going to put a major
investment into the system, a system that has out-of-control
cost inflation, and essentially not do anything relative to

trying to structurally add some opportunities for innovation.

Would you respond on that point?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Well, I think I could not say it any better
than you did, I totally agree with that. I think it is an
opportunity not only to gain control over the costs of care,
but to innovate, through a lot of payment and delivery system
reform, the development of medical homes.

Mr. POMEROY. There is a final point I want to get in before
my time elapses. I will ask Ms. Pollitz this one. There has
been some discussion about the level of delegation between
Congress and the executive branch relative to running, for
example, a Medicare program relative to payment reforms. So
when my friend on the other side of the aisle talks about CMS
payment reforms, possibly he is contemplating the idea that
there ought to be delegation of authority to the executive
branch, to CMS, relative to being able to initiate payment
reforms. What are your thoughts on that one?

Ms. POLLITZ. I'm sorry, sir, I cannot really comment on
that.

Mr. POMEROY. You are a long-term health expert with
experience in the executive branch yourself. I am surprised
that you cannot comment.

Ms. POLLITZ. I know there is interest in trying to remove
from the political process some of these important decisions so
that they are made on a more scientific basis, and I think
there may be some value in trying to accomplish that.

Mr. POMEROY. Thank you.

Chairman RANGEL. Mr. Boustany.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Gratzer, I am a
cardiac-thoracic surgeon who has 20 years experience, clinical
experience dealing with patients before coming to Congress, and
I appreciate your comments earlier about quality and
innovation, which have been really unique in medical history
worldwide. What we have seen in this country has been
tremendous development. The question is how do we most
efficiently use all that.

I think there are a couple of things missing in this
debate. First of all, the basic things we ought to be talking
about are access to a physician, a doctor/patient relationship
that is actually meaningful, that focuses on prevention and
screening built on trust. And, second, the cost issue. But what
has been missing in this debate are the real drivers of cost,
and it is at the level of the doctor/patient relationship
because you have physician behavior and you have patient
behavior. And this bill does not do much at all to address
either one of those. And, in fact, I would submit that the
bill, there are elements of this bill that will make that
worse.

Would you like to comment?

Dr. GRATZER. So you were a surgeon?

Mr. BOUSTANY. Yes.

Dr. GRATZER. I am a psychiatrist. We have nothing in
common. Look, I could not agree more with you.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Compassion.

Dr. GRATZER. Look, there are certain things we can agree on
no matter whether you are a Republican or Democrat or what your
political affiliation. One is that the doctor/patient
relationship should always be preserved, that it is the
building block of the modern health care system and should
always be preserved within any reform package. But I also think
you would agree that we spend in America and do not always get
results.

Again, I am not arguing that some of the medical technology
has not been extraordinary. You mention cardiac-thoracic, as
you know, death by cardiovascular disease has plummeted by two-
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thirds in the last 60 years. And we have seen innovation time
and time and time again. But just because you go to a doctor
and there are new drugs do not necessarily mean that they are
better drugs. Just because you get a procedure does not mean
you needed it or it was well done. I think that goes back to
some of the things that Peter Orszag and others in the White
House are talking about that I agree with, that we need better
value. There is a smart way of doing that and a bad way of
doing it.

Mr. BOUSTANY. I agree and that is what is missing in the
debate.

Dr. GRATZER. Absolutely.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Because I think we are still at the 30,000
foot level. If I can reclaim my time for a moment, I was
listening to the testimony very carefully and, Ms. Pollitz, you
talked about a government controlling costs. Does Medicare
control cost?

Ms. POLLITZ. To some extent, yes.

Mr. BOUSTANY. It does not do a very good job, does it?

Ms. POLLITZ. Well, I think Medicare cost growth in most
years has been at or below that of the growth of private
insurance.

Mr. BOUSTANY. As my colleague from Wisconsin, Mr. Ryan,
pointed out, the looming insolvency of the Medicare Trust Fund.
We have serious Medicare problems that we need to address. And
so I think to pose a government option at a time when we are
dealing with existing government programs is at the very least
problematic.

A question, let's see, for Dr. Holahan. You mentioned
Medicare rates in the government plan. Do you believe that the
Medicare rate structure has caused distortions in the entire
reimbursement structure given that Medicare rates most of the
time do not cover cost of basic goods and services? And do you
advocate price controls extending beyond the provider side to
the suppliers of medical technology and devices?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Well, that is what we do today and the
government sets them, but by and large there———-

Mr. BOUSTANY. So you do agree with price controls and you
want to see it extended into the——-

Mr. HOLAHAN. Yes, I do not think you really have much
alternative in the current market so it will be some————-—

Mr. BOUSTANY. Thank you.

Mr. HOLAHAN. But if you had———-

Mr. BOUSTANY. I appreciate your answer, thank you. Thank
you, sir. I have a question now for Dr. Young. Dr. Young, you
talked about a single payer using " “inherent cost control
measures. '’

Dr. YOUNG. Yes.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Explain what that means?

Dr. YOUNG. Well, I tried to dialogue on that when I
described the single payer giving you a complete record of the
pattern of behavior of doctors.

Mr. BOUSTANY. So, in other words, you are having a
bureaucrat make a medical decision and in fact rationing care?

Dr. YOUNG. I don't think that is what I said. I described
the fact that you have the data that allow you to see patterns
of excess or under service, and that we certainly need
oversight. That is the great tradition of medicine.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Has Medicare done a very good job of that
because we have Medicare data?

Dr. YOUNG. I think it has done a terrific job. I think it
is the far best of the insurers in this country.

Mr. BOUSTANY. Could you comment on the use of the Society
of Thoracic Surgeon's database in cardiovascular disease?

Dr. YOUNG. I cannot help you, I am not acquainted with
that.

Mr. BOUSTANY. I would think as someone who is interested in
data and using best practices, this database has been
outstanding. It was developed in 1989 and has gone a long way
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toward the improvement in care in cardiovascular disease. I
suggest you look at it.

I see that my time is up. I thank the Chairman.

Mr. STARK [Presiding]l. Mr. Thompson, would you like to
inquire?

Mr. THOMPSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thanks for
holding today's hearing and for your effort to make sure that
this process has been open, and that we are able to work
through this to address all these issues. I just hope that the
ongoing procedural votes that we are taking do not further
disrupt our efforts here.

I want to first point out there has been a lot of talk
about this independent, nonpartisan study that associates some
pretty high prices with doing what most Americans believe we
need to do, and that is reform health care. And I think it is
important to note for the record that this HSI Network that is
supposed to be nonpartisan and independent is actually a group
that is—-one of the participants is the modeler for Senator
McCain's health care and his work. And it has been pointed out
in the press that some of what they said had not always been
based in fact. There was one quote that I found interesting,
""Every candidate should say that these numbers were produced
by my experts, and they are my best estimates but they are not
exact."'

And if you look at what this same group, this HSI, did in
regard to modeling the health bill over in the Senate. They
were four times higher than what the CBO came in with. So I
think we need to know where these numbers are coming from.

And as they relate to our tri-committee effort, I think it
is important also to note that they said that the analysis has
no offsets, their analysis, there are no offsets in this
discussion draft. And that is just patently false. We know that
to be the case. And so if they miss that, it is hard telling
what else they missed.

Mr. CAMP. Would the gentleman yield for just a moment?

Mr. THOMPSON. On a positive note————-

Mr. CAMP. Would the gentleman yield for just 30 seconds?

Mr. THOMPSON. I want to finish my thought here, then I will
get back to my other issues there. On a positive note, they did
say one thing that was interesting, and I will quote. They
said, ““In contrast to the Senate version of this bill, the
House version is more fiscally prudent and effective.'' Yes,
for 30——for 15 seconds.

Mr. CAMP. Just to say that CBO did not score the full
Kennedy bill, so the $1 trillion is really not the final
number. I just wanted to clarify the record on that. We are not
comparing apples to apples here.

Mr. THOMPSON. Reclaiming my time, and the numbers that we
are being told are nonpartisan and independent are not real
numbers at all, so it is a very, very biased study.

I want to get some policy changes that I believe will lead
us to better health care and at the same time drive down
prices. I would like to get the experts' opinion on this. I am
one who believes that an expansion of technology can really be
beneficial in all this and think that there is a lot more in
the area of telehealth that we could be doing that would
provide better outcomes and drive down the cost. And there are
a couple of examples that I have seen in my district alone. UC-
Davis does a virtual tumor board, and they have just example
after example of cases where they have helped people and driven
down the cost. They talk about one where they were able to
confer with a local team and diagnose a patient and a treatment
plan for a patient who was in an underserved area, doing this
through telemedicine. And they were able to treat it in a non-
invasive way at a much lower cost. And, ironically, that work
is not reimburseable under the Medicare provisions that we have
now.

I have another case, I could just go on and on and on with
examples of this, but I think it is an area where we can really
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pick up some costs and do better health care. And I would like
to hear your impression of that and if you think that we should
really expand the provisions for telehealth in this bill? We
can start with Ms. Pollitz.

Ms. POLLITZ. I am not an expert on this area, but I don't
believe a lot of private insurance health insurance would pay
for that either. And this kind of consulting between
physicians, whether it is face to face or on the phone or
telehealth, I think is very important in patient coordination
of care. And that we do need to find ways to support that and
reimburse it.

Mr. THOMPSON. Anyone else care to?

Mr. HOLAHAN. It seems to me that it is a very good idea,
but you really-—-you need payment reforms that bundle payments
that can include that kind of contact.

Mr. THOMPSON. Well, these are not even included in many,
many cases. And in underserved areas, there is some expansion
in rural but urban underserved areas do not get the attention.
And underserved is underserved, it does not matter where they
are. And these are people who are going without health care or
were provided at a much higher price.

Mr. HOLAHAN. I agree with you.

Dr. GRATZER. Look, there is a role for other things as
well. I do not think necessarily everyone needs to see a
doctor. There is a greater role for nurses and nurse
practitioners. I really think in the United States we have done
ourselves an enormous disservice by not tapping more in terms
of information technology.

You know, in Denmark--Denmark, everyone's health record who
wants it is put online. You can look up your own cholesterol
and track it over time. I think if that is good enough for the
Danes, it ought to be good enough for the Americans. I think it
also would address to a small extent Mr. Becerra's comment
about the high level of medical errors we have in the United
States. So much technology if you go to Wal-Mart and you buy
your kid a plastic lawnmower but so little technology in terms
of your health records. You can see your doctor right across
the street from a hospital, and go to the hospital because you
are feeling worse, the ER, and no one would know any blood test
that had been done. It is just absurd. So I agree with your
point.

Mr. THOMPSON. Thank you.

Mr. STARK. Mr. Nunes, would you like to inquire?

Mr. NUNES. Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank
the panel for being here today. Ms. Pollitz, Dr. Holahan and
Dr. Young, the three of you support the underlying bill, right,
even though——-

Dr. YOUNG. No.

Mr. NUNES. Oh, you do not? Dr. Young, you do not support
the bill?

Dr. YOUNG. That is right.

Mr. NUNES. Okay, but the first two of you, you do support
the bill?

Ms. POLLITZ. I think it is a very good bill and it could
use some additional improvements.

Mr. NUNES. Okay, like finishing the bill, you guys have
seen this, one of the parts not finished yet? I am wondering if
that is——is that the strategy is to get 50 votes in the Senate
and then let the Administration fill in the bill, do you guys
know?

Ms. POLLITZ. I cannot comment on that.

Mr. NUNES. Well, for the two of you that support the
underlying bill or the basics of the bill, I do not think there
is any argument that under this bill more people would be
eligible for Medicaid and more people would be pushed on to
Medicaid, do you agree with that?

Ms. POLLITZ. More people would definitely be made eligible
for Medicaid, which is a very important reform, but the bill
also provides that people who are in Medicaid can have the
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choice of enrolling in a private plan through the exchange.

Mr. NUNES. Can you-—-go ahead.

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think the answer is basically yes, but I
think there are people that are above the level, the income
level that they talk about who might eventually move off of
Medicaid into the exchanges. So there will be some moving
around.

Mr. NUNES. I have trouble understanding, maybe the two of
you can help me understand, why would we want to put more
American citizens on to Medicaid? I have a lot of people on
Medicaid in my district, and for the life of me, I cannot
understand why we would want to make more people eligible for
Medicaid and why we would want to shove more people on to
Medicaid, can you guys answer that question, why that is a good
idea?

Mr. HOLAHAN. It is a program that is big, it has a lot of
history, a lot of law and regulation around it. And we are
taking on a lot in reform in terms of putting even more people
potentially into these exchanges and potentially into the
public plan. I think it would make the job harder if you did
not build on to some extent on what we already have. And I
think down the road, you might want to revisit whether Medicaid
should stay distinct or how it gets incorporated within the
exchange, but I think that for the moment that would make the
whole job harder.

Mr. NUNES. Right, unless you are on Medicaid right now. I
do not have anyone that I know of, and maybe you guys could
help me dig some folks up, that like being on Medicaid and that
want to be on Medicaid.

Ms. POLLITZ. I do.

Mr. NUNES. You know people who like Medicaid?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes.

Mr. NUNES. Well, I would love to meet these people.

Ms. POLLITZ. I would be happy to introduce you.

Mr. NUNES. Because I have a whole bunch of people on
Medicaid in my district, and the doctors do not want to see
them, the people that I know are embarrassed to even admit that
they are on Medicaid. They do not want to be on Medicaid. If
that is the case, why don't we just make—-why do we need this
big plan, why don't we just put everybody on Medicaid?

Ms. POLLITZ. Congressman, I think there is no question that
the Medicaid program has suffered from underfunding over the
years and that there has been a stigma attached to a poverty
program, but the Medicaid program has incredibly important
protections that it offers people, very comprehensive coverage,
no cost sharing, coverage for all kinds of additional services
that are important and that people with limited means need in
order to get the health care, transportation care services.

Mr. NUNES. But you know someone, you said that you know
people that are on Medicaid that like it?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes.

Mr. NUNES. And they would prefer to stay on Medicaid?

Ms. POLLITZ. I have a friend--yes, her——a friend of my
daughter, a 1l4-year-old young lady, her mother just passed
away, she had been on private insurance.

Mr. NUNES. She likes Medicaid better than private
insurance?

Ms. POLLITZ. It was a pretty good plan but it has a $500
deductible and 20 percent call insurance, and she had to go to
the emergency room earlier this year because she was very sick
and her aunt took her and a great big bill generated. My
husband and I ended up paying it for them.

Mr. NUNES. So if the hypothesis is———-

Ms. POLLITZ. She just got on Medicaid and now———-—

Mr. NUNES. The hypothesis is though, your hypothesis that
Medicaid is insurance from what I just heard?

Ms. POLLITZ. No, I am just saying that Medicaid has a lot
of advantages and offers a lot of extra protections for people
and it is important.
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Mr. STARK. Would the gentleman yield?

Mr. NUNES. Well, my time is running out. My time is running
out, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. STARK. I will extend it. Just if I could suggest——-

Mr. NUNES. Just for 1@ seconds here because I do not want
to lose my time.

Mr. STARK. After 5 years, people could choose in the
exchange.

Mr. NUNES. The public option?

Mr. STARK. They could choose private or public and not take
Medicaid if they did not want to. In other words, after the
first 5 years with the exchanges that are running, the bill,
the draft would suggest that at that point people would not
have to go into Medicaid, they could choose an exchange. And we
would welcome other options, but once the bill--it is not the
intent of this draft to force people into Medicaid. That is all
I am saying.

Mr. NUNES. But I think there is no question though that it
would make——it would put people into Medicaid, which I have—-
Mr. Chairman, I have a fundamental problem with. I think
Medicaid is broke now, it has a $20 trillion unfunded mandate,
and the more people we throw on to them, how are we going to
pay for this?

Mr. STARK. In California, you have a real problem.

Mr. NUNES. That is our problem I guess to deal with too,
Mr. Chairman.

But in finishing up, I would just say that I really do not
understand a plan that we would put out there that would put
more people into Medicaid even in the short term. I think if we
are going to revamp health care, we ought to look at Medicaid
and try to get as many people off of Medicaid as possible
today, not tomorrow.

And I will yield back. Thanks, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HOLAHAN. One point to make is that one of the things
that I think that you were concerned about is access to primary
care physicians, and there is a provision in this bill that
would increase those rates.

Mr. STARK. I thank the gentleman. Mr. Blumenauer, would you
like to inquire?

Mr. BLUMENAUER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the
opportunity for us to start focusing in on some of these items.
And I appreciate in particular Dr. Holahan talking about the
cost of doing nothing. And I think that is one of the things
that is so critical that gets lost. If we float along for
another year or two or three or four, we are going to find more
uninsured. We are going to find fewer people who are insured by
their employers. And those that are, are going to be facing
higher costs and less comprehensive coverage.

I hope that we as a Committee will be able as we go forward
to look at getting more value out of the existing system. There
is some in the draft that I like. There are things that I have
in terms of end of life transitional benefits. There are a
whole series of things that I am excited about, some of which
are in the draft. We can do more. I do not think we have gone
far enough in terms of dealing with radical disparities of
Medicare reimbursement around the country. I am particularly
concerned that what is in the bill for Medicare Advantage will
hurt efficient areas and will have virtually no effect on very
high cost States. But this is a process that I hope we can work
on together.

The notion of how we are going to pay for this is part of
the cost containment. We have 3 or 4 years before this kicks
in, so we will have a chance to refine the getting more value
out. And I do not think any of us feel that when the other
areas where there will be some costs associated, and the polls
show the American public is in favor of paying a little bit
more if they get security and 50 million, more or less, get
health insurance, they think that is a good deal. But it is not
going to kick in this year or next year. We will have a chance
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for the economy to regain its footing.

I am a little concerned about the language here about
somehow forcing people on to the public plan because people
will go into the exchange where the public plan is one of their
choices, and that sort of gets lost in the discussion.

And I want to pose my question because, Dr. Holahan, you
referenced it in your testimony, but as I read it, it is a
little esoteric, with all due respect, about where the
Department of Justice thinks it is noncompetitive and there
might be antitrust. My reading of the data is that there are 25
States where one insurance company has 50 percent or more of
the market. If you could perhaps discuss a little bit in
practical terms about the lack of competition that most
Americans face now with meaningful choices of health insurance.
And my read of this is that the insurance companies themselves
are going to be advantaged because we are going to streamline
some of this process and squeeze out some of the goofy stuff
that goes on. Right now, trying to deny people coverage, we are
not going to have preexisting conditions, that is going to be a
level playing field that is going to make I assume a very big
difference.

And if you want to also comment for a second about the
sound bite that you got trapped into saying about cost controls
and then cut off, if time permits to elaborate. But I would
like you to talk for a moment about meaningful competition that
we are going to be providing under the framework that has been
offered.

Mr. HOLAHAN. Yes, a few months back, we had some executives
from a big Blue Cross plan in the Midwest visit us to get
advice on how they could control costs. And the first thing I
asked was how well do you pay relative to Medicare. And the
answer was they paid 79 percent above Medicare rates to
hospitals and 68 percent above Medicare to physicians. And so
like why are you here? They did this because they can. They
have no competition. And they can pass on, to the extent this
means higher premiums, they are able to pass that on. And I
think that is a role that this public plan would have to—-I
think could help with, help in those markets and help in others
where there are more insurers but one that is really dominant
and still not able to deal with dominant hospital systems or
single specialty groups that essentially bargain as
monopolists.

Mr. BLUMENAUER. Thank you. I appreciate that. I would just
close by noting it would be interesting to take a test of the
people on this Committee who have health insurance, I assume
most of us probably do, and find out how many of us made the
decision based on what was the cheapest plan? It would be
interesting to find out if we could figure out what was the
cheapest plan. I get my insurance through my wife's company
because I think she has greater contact with their Department
of Human Resources to try and decipher stuff that I cannot, but
I think the record is rather clear that there are lots of
people, including in the Federal system, and I will bet people
on this Committee, who make lots of choices that are not the
cheapest as it appears on that chart. And so I think the fear
somehow that all competition would stampede to a public plan if
it appeared a little more affordable is at least near-fetched.

Thank you.

Mr. STARK. Thank you. Mr. Roskam, would you like to
inquire?

Mr. ROSKAM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. First of all, thanks
for your time and your attention today. I think all of us have
been enlightened by the nature of your comments. And you have
been fairly transparent, when you have not known what is in the
bill, I appreciate someone saying, " ~I have no idea what is in
the bill.'' I do think this time, this season that we are in is
absolutely incredible. There is momentum here, right, and there
is an opportunity I think transformational, but it has struck
me as strange that here we started this hearing at 9 o'clock, I

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CHRG-111hhrg62998/html/CHRG-111hhrg62998 .htm

50/304



1/18/24, 12:06 PM - HEALTH REFORM IN THE 21ST CENTURY: PROPOSALS TO REFORM THE HEALTH SYSTEM

was out for a couple of minutes for some of the procedural
stuff that is happening on the floor but we are well into this
hearing, and we have not had much of a conversation about
Medicare fraud, about fraud within the system and abuse within
the system.

I have been briefed by experts, and I do not think these
are folks that are pulling punches one way or the other in
terms of donkeys and elephants, but have come to the conclusion
that as much as 13 percent of current Medicare outlays are
fraudulent. I have a quote from the chief counsel to the Health
and Human Services Inspector General who said, "~“Building a
Medicare fraud scam is far safer than dealing in crack or
dealing in stolen cars and it is far more lucrative.'' And here
we are on the verge of something that is absolutely enormous in
terms of costs. Frankly, when costs come up, the Majority kind
of loses high contact and gets a little bit defensive, with all
due respect, about, well, who is putting these estimates out
and so forth. But as we are sitting here today, no real number
in terms of a cost estimate.

And, yet, here we have this opportunity to recast resources
and put it in the proper direction that I think ultimately can
have a huge impact. So I would like to shift the conversation a
little bit. Dr. Holahan, something that you said concerned me,
and I want to give you a chance to clean it up. But when you
were having a conversation I think it was with Mr. Nunes a
minute ago, in sort of defense of Medicaid, you said, and I
jotted it down because it really got my attention, and " these
were attributes that I interpreted as positive attributes,''
right? You said that, "“It is big, it has a history and it has
lots of law and regulation around it,'' meaning sort of this
case law around it. And I would suggest that I think that is
one of the real weaknesses of the current system, that it has
become hidebound, an inability to recognize fraud within the
system and an inability to recognize abuse within the systenm,
an inability to recognize overutilization and so forth. And I
just wanted to first of all give you an opportunity to--surely
those three adjectives of big, rich history and lots of law and
regulation is not an attribute, those are not characteristics
that you are lauding, are they?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Well, what I meant was——to be more specific, I
think this is a really big deal to reform our health system. To
the extent you have something that you can build upon that
works reasonably well, despite some problems, I think that is a
good thing when we are taking on so much.

A few years back, I did a study with a colleague of mine to
look at whether Medicaid is really high cost relative to
private insurers, so we compared Medicaid to people with
private coverage, all low-income people, and looked at whether
medical benefits, when you controlled for health status and
income and education and other characteristics, controlled
statistically for that, and Medicaid it turns out is less
costly. And that is not to say there is not fraud in Medicaid
and Medicare, but despite that, it is less expensive than
private insurance by some margin. And we certainly should go
after fraud wherever we can. I guess the thing I would be
curious about is whether the same study that you were referring
to had anything to say about fraud in Aetna or Blue Cross plans
or anything like that. I do not know whether it did or not, but
I can't believe it is totally absent.

Mr. ROSKAM. There is no question about it, but I think here
we are 3 hours into a hearing that by the proponents' own
adjective is going to transform the system and yet we really
have not had much of a conversation as it relates to driving,
just rampant abuse out of the system.

Thank you for being transparent about that. The people that
I have interacted with as it relates to Medicaid feel
underserved by it, feel discouraged by it, and it has taken the
joy of the medical practice from physicians.

My time has expired, and I yield back.
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Mr. STARK. Thank you. Mr. Kind, would you like to inquire?

Mr. KIND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I too want to thank our
witnesses today for your patience and also the task of trying
to absorb an 840-page piece of legislation in a short period of
time, and I think you have been doing a good job today.

But I think my friend, the gentleman from Illinois, Mr.
Roskam, raises a very important issue and that is what is
contained in this health care reform that can really help crack
down on fraud within the Medicare system? And with that, I
would just reference Title 6 of the legislation and go through
those specific provisions.

We are trying to not only enhance resources to the agencies
in charge of detecting fraud and bringing greater
accountability but also enhancing the penalties when it is
ultimately——and that whole section is devoted to cracking down
on fraud and the waste that exists in the system today. And if
the gentleman or others have more ideas on what we can do to
beef this up, we are all ears.

But I think the sweet spot we have to hit here is the
ability to distinguish between unintentional error and
intentional fraud, and I think that does concern a lot of the
providers out there, especially in submitting their billing
claims, that if something was inputted wrong, are they going to
be subject to the full weight of investigation and fraudulent
penalties due to a harmless human error in the system.

But, listen, I want to take my time to direct your
attention to Title 4 of the draft discussion piece. That is
titled, “~“Quality,'' and I think this is the key to how
successful we are at the end of the day, of whether or not we
can enhance the quality of care and finding cost savings at the
same time. That section is devoted entirely to the comparative
effectiveness research. And that is what I want to get your
response on, if you had a chance to review that provision.

Let me preface my question by saying I come from western
Wisconsin, which has been recognized as a high-quality, low-
cost area. We have Mayo in there, Marshville Clinic, Gundersen,
even the President has recognized that the health care models
that have been developed in our region, as examples of what we
need to incent in reform in order to achieve the type of cost
savings without jeopardizing quality at the end of the day.
This is coordinated, integrated care practices, more emphasis
on primary, prevent, wellness programs, things that have proven
very effective in helping drive down cost while enhancing care.
And I think that is the key to doing comparative effectiveness
research the right way and not the wrong way and establishing
the center in the legislation for comparative effectiveness
research, establishing an independent commission comprised of
independent, both public and private stakeholders as part of
the commission, to review the research, the data, making
recommendations to the center. And then I think this is the key
distinction, empowering our doctors and patients with the
information so they know what works and what does not work. And
we are placing a huge bet on that, that with doctors and
patients armed with this information, that they are going to
make the right decisions which is going to not only improve
patient care but help drive down costs. And it is tough to
ignore a study of a reputable organization like McKenzie
Institute that claims based on their research that $650 billion
of health care spending every year goes to care and treatment
that does not improve the quality of results at the end of the
day. And that is going to be the key I think to comparative
effectiveness.

I see Mr. Herger has joined us because he raised a very
important issue when it came time for him to question the
panel, and that is how the information is ultimately going to
be used. And I would reference, and he is involved in a
conversation, but on page 446 of the discussion draft, lines
three through six, the construction on the use of comparative
effectiveness. And let me just read that real quick. This is an
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important point. It states that, " “Nothing in this section
shall be construed to permit the Commission or the Center on
Comparative Effectiveness Research to mandate coverage,
reimbursement or other policies for any public or private
player.'' And I think that is a hugely important provision in
this legislation, basically saying we are not going to ration,
we are not going to be making those type of cost decisions
based on CER research. And I think that is going to be
important that we recognize that as we move forward.

So, Ms. Pollitz, let me first give you a chance to respond
as far as the role you see CER research playing and how
important or vital that is going to be for the health care
reform that we are trying to offer here today?

Ms. POLLITZ. I think it is very important, Congressman. I
had the pleasure of attending a conference a couple of weeks
ago where the director of the agency in Australia that heads
this up was just talking about how this research gets brought
to bear in decisions in that country and people were left
breathless, like why don't we do that here? So I think it is a
very important investment, and I commend you for including
that.

Mr. KIND. It is interesting a lot of providers are doing
that. In fact, Cleveland Clinic has been doing this for a long
time, and the CEO of Cleveland Clinic just indicated they had
70 countries contact them to find out what they are doing and
how well it has worked, 70 countries. So even countries outside
of the United States are recognizing the type of model of care
that is being provided and the cost savings that comes with it.

Dr. GRATZER. I note as well that there are some private
sector innovations that are also useful. Think about Safeway,
which has actually brought health inflation to a stalemate in
the last 3 years. Some of the information is its comparative
effectiveness, it is transparency of prices. If you are in
certain regions in the country and you are a Safeway employee,
they will actually list out your options for say CAT scan and
the prices and soon they are hoping to put quality on board. So
it is not just a role for government, I think. I am a little
bit more hesitant on comparative effectiveness perhaps than you
are, but there is a role for government undoubtedly, but I
think there is also a role for the private sector as well and
ultimately culturally as people demand more and should be
required to shop around and gain more information, just as they
do for much mundaneness things like food, clothing and shelter.

Mr. KIND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I see my time has
expired.

Mr. STARK. Thank you. Mr. Pascrell, would you like to
inquire?

Mr. PASCRELL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Chairman, I want to
clear up some things that were mentioned before about New
Jersey.

[Laughter.]

Mr. PASCRELL. New Jersey is more expensive because
insurance companies are required to cover all comers. Without
an individual mandate, healthier people drop coverage, leaving
behind the sickest people. That drives up the cost, doesn't it,
Ms. Pollitz?

Ms. POLLITZ. Yes, it does.

Mr. PASCRELL. If anything New Jersey is a case study in why
we need universal coverage, just the opposite of our
proponents——or opponents, whichever you decide, are talking
about. State mandates are designed to protect people. And I
would argue that if everyone were in the pool, folks in New
Jersey would be better off because they would be guaranteed
access to the services they need, like childhood immunizations.
Let's not mandate that. What is the consequences of not
mandating that? Aren't we talking about preventing diseases and
in that way lowering costs?

How about my favorite chronic diseases, diabetes care. When
we look at the cost of health care, who is seeking aid later in
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life because of situations that occurred much earlier, which
they were not able to get hold of? How about prostrate cancer
screening, do you want to mandate that? Do you want to bring
down the cost of health care? Let's mandate it. Would anyone on
the other side say, " "No, we should not mandate that''? How
about mammograms? We thought we had that battle a few years
ago, but that continues to come up. Maternity care, treatment
for alcoholism? Now, why in the world should we mandate that?
Look, the patient is the center of what we are talking about
here, not insurance companies, not Congressmen, the patient
therefore is the main priority of putting a system together
built around that patient. And that is what I have on my mind.

Now, Mr. Gratzer, in your testimony you said that, ~“We
must reform our health care system with “made in America'
solutions.'' Well, that goes with a lot of other rhetoric I
have heard. I could not agree more. The discussion draft that
we are considering is a "~ “made in America'' solution. It builds
on lessons that we have learned right here in the United
States. It brings competition and choice and a system of checks
and balances, we do not have checks and balances now. We do not
even have checks and balances with regard to ferreting out
those who abuse the system, who actually purvey fraud on the
system. In fact, we slap them on the wrist and say, "~~Sin no
more,'' but we do not prosecute them.

I take issue with your focus on a single payer systenm,
which despite your arguments is not the issue at hand. Even Dr.
Young has told us that our plan is not a path to single payer.
Unfortunately, you make fundamentally different underlying
assumptions about a public health insurance option that most of
the individuals on the panel, and many of the questions you
pose about a level playing field can be answered with a
resounding yes. In fact, we have gone to great pains to make
sure that this public health insurance option is indeed on a
level field with its private competitors.

And I would like you to comment on some of the arguments
made by Dr. Holahan. Specifically, in the absence of a public
health option, how would you propose bringing real competition
to health insurance markets that currently have none?

Dr. GRATZER. I think we have regulated ourselves into a
situation where in many States, too many States, you——-—

Mr. KIND. Who is "“we,'' who is "“we'' regulated?

Dr. GRATZER. It is between Congress and State legislatures.

Mr. KIND. What have we done, what regulations have we put
forth that have resulted in the consequences which you say
exist? What is the regulation. Tell me one regulation, two
regulations, three?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, in some States community rating.

Mr. KIND. "“We,'' we said the Federal Government, you said
the Congress, do not go back to the States. What did the
Congress do?

Dr. GRATZER. Right, I said both, sir. And I would emphasize
that it is a collective problem, and I think that these
mandates end up driving out insurance companies and reducing
choice. But, look, I agree with you, there is not enough
competition in some States. In some States, in the small group
market, you are down to literally one option or two options,
but I think the way around that is through deregulation and
allowing more competition amongst insurance companies rather
than the Federal Government creating an insurance company,
which by the way, as you know, would not be covered by those
regulations, would not pay the tax, would not———-

Mr. KIND. Dr. Gratzer, what would you deregulate right now?

Dr. GRATZER. Why would I deregulate?

Mr. KIND. Yes.

Dr. GRATZER. I would allow people to purchase insurance
plans across State lines.

Mr. KIND. That is your deregulation moment?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, that would be one of the things I would
do for sure. And then for the people who, as you point out, are
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chronically ill, I would———-

Mr. KIND. I'm sorry, go ahead.

Dr. GRATZER [continuing]. Put them in high-risk pools and
the like. I am not going to argue today that some people cannot
afford a private insurance plan, of course, but I think we have
to be focused on our aid.

Mr. KIND. What do you do with those people? What do you do
with those people, Dr. Gratzer, the people that cannot afford——
Mr. STARK. We will have to come back to this later, Mr.
Pascrell, and let Mr. Reichert find out what Dr. Gratzer wants.

Mr. REICHERT. Well, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to at
least first of all make a statement on I think Mr. Pascrell is
absolutely correct, the patient really is the focus here, and I
think all of us here today who have had a chance and
opportunity to question and hear some of the answers to the
questions are all in agreement that we are trying to do the
best thing for the people of America, for those people who, all
of us at some time or another, who need health care. And so
that is why we are here today.

To fight over one system over another is counterproductive
because I think we all can agree that the patient is the center
of our attention and should be, that there are not enough
checks and balances, I agree with that. There is a lot of
fraud, waste and abuse, I agree with that. We are not doing
anything with that. And we all agree that we would like
Americans today to have better access to health care, better
quality health care. We would like this health care to be cost-
effective. We would like people to have a free choice. And I
think that people, I know myself personally, would like to have
some control over the treatment and the medication that is
prescribed to me for my health care. Those things we all agree
on.

The question, I think the major overarching question is how
do we really overcome this fear of a lot of the American people
today regarding this discussion we are having today about a
government takeover of the health care plan, especially when
you throw in the considerations that Mr. Ryan has expressed
today and one other Member here, and the trillions of dollars
of unfunded mandates. And so the fear of the cost and the fear
of the lack of control and the reduction of your access to
health care and the reduction of the quality of health care.

Dr. Gratzer, I would ask you first maybe to respond to
that?

Dr. GRATZER. I want my colleagues to answer first.

Mr. REICHERT. Okay, anyone else, anyone on the panel?

Ms. POLLITZ. Congressman, I think public opinion polls show
that the public overwhelmingly favor having the choice of a
public plan. I think it is also true, and it was in The
Washington Post this morning, that people are always nervous
about change. I was here in this room, sitting in that row 15
years ago, the last time health reform care was considered and
the Harry and Louise ads were all over the airwaves, and I
think there is no question that the greatest vulnerability of
the reform effort this time is to frighten people into thinking
that they will be worse off.

Mr. REICHERT. I am just going to interrupt you for a
second. I stepped out in the hallway and met with some
representatives of a union who said we want a public health
plan, we want to make sure that those people who are not
insured get health care, we all want that. But the other thing
they said to me was we do not want our health plan to go away
and on top of that, I do not want my health plan taxed. So we
have a problem here. How do you address those concerns, people
who--and I am one of them, and I think as I said most people
here, we all want people without health care to get health
care, but I like the plan that I am in. Others in this room I
am sure do, 75 percent of Americans it said do like their
health care plan. They do not want to be taxed on it. So the
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question here again goes back to cost. How much is this going
to cost us and how are we going to pay for it?

And one of the issues around this is the waste, fraud and
abuse. Some estimates place Medicare fraud at $13 billion per
year. The GAO found that Medicare has paid at least $92 million
to Part B for providers who are deceased. How can we reduce the
staggering amount of fraud in the Medicare system? And what is
to prevent this fraud, waste and abuse from happening in the
government takeover of other parts of this system? Anyone want
to respond?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I just was talking to the question about
choice. I think that the way I understand this plan, there
would be more choices. And I think sometimes the way——-

Mr. REICHERT. What about the fear though that the private
sector will not be able to compete with———-

Mr. HOLAHAN. Well, I do not agree with that. I think there
are some insurers———-—

Mr. REICHERT. But some people do———-—

Mr. HOLAHAN. I understand.

Mr. REICHERT [continuing]. How do you explain that?

Mr. HOLAHAN. I think the best insurance companies in this
country are very, very good. They will be able to compete with
the public plan. The weaker ones that have competed by just
going after good risks and not being effective managers of care
delivery could be at risk, but I think it will, at the end of
the day, be an effective and healthy competition between the
public plan and good insurers.

Mr. REICHERT. I appreciate your answer. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. STARK. Ms. Berkley, would you like to inquire?

Ms. BERKLEY. Yes, thank you very much, Chairman Stark. And
thank you all for being here and sharing your expertise with
us. I am strongly in support of passing comprehensive health
reform legislation this year. A third of the people I
represent, and I represent the urban core of Las Vegas, have no
health insurance. So it is imperative for the people that I
represent, that they have some access to health care through
insurance.

It is not as if people that do not have health insurance do
not get sick. They get sick, and the additional cost is borne
by the rest of us. I would say statistically speaking, $1,000
for each of us that is insured, there is an extra $1,000
attached to the cost of our health insurance in order to
subsidize others.

In an effort to give full disclosure, my husband is a
nephrologist, my stepdaughter is a primary care physician, we
need more doctors, and we need to incentivize the opportunity
for people to go to medical school, which is not only multiple
years of their lives but also a great deal of expense. When my
stepdaughter graduated-—-not graduated, but when she graduated,
she had $190,000 debt. I am a tremendous advocate of loan
forgiveness and also an advocate of increase GMEs. I think it
is very important, and they need to be spread out around the
country a little bit more proportionately than they are now.

I do not think—--look, this is a work in progress. I am not
willing to sign off on the legislation. A draft proposal that
was dropped on Friday is the beginning of an important and
comprehensive discussion among all the stakeholders and those
of us that are going to be voting for it. That is why your
being here is so important today. Hopefully, this will be the
first of many hearings in order to improve our expertise and
knowledge so we can do the right thing and fine tune this.

Cost is definitely a factor. There is no doubt about it.
But right now we have the most costly health care system on the
planet. We are not getting a bang for our buck. Doctors do not
like the system. The hospitals do not. The patients do not. And
we need to change the paradigm so that we are investing our
money wisely and having a far better outcome than we have now.

One of the things I am a great advocate of is preventative
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medicine, and I am the original sponsor of the DXA bill.
Medicare cuts payments to people that need bone density by 60
percent, which means that the doctors are not administering
them anymore. Nineteen billion dollars it costs this country in
order to pay bone-related osteoporosis fractures every year.
Let us take that money and put in the front end. It is going to
cost us less. We are going to have a whole lot less bone
fractures and statistically speaking, if you are over 70 and
you break your hip, you are going to be dead within 10 months.
It seems that we will improve the quality of life, we will
enhance life, and we are going to save billions of taxpayers'
dollars by using our dollars wisely in the front end of the
process rather than in end of life care.

And if any of you care to discuss any of those, I would
love to hear your point of view.

Ms. Pollitz.

Ms. POLLITZ. That was a lot and all excellent. I think just
on the prevention, an important feature in the required
essential health benefits package is that preventative services
would be covered without any cost sharing so that people can
have access to those services and not face those barriers. That
is an important component.

Ms. BERKLEY. May I say one thing, and it just gets my goat,
I am not the defender of every doctor on the planet, and I know
we have a lot of real stinkers, but I will tell you something
the doctors I know work like dogs and this fraud and abuse
thing as if every doctor is out to scam the system is highly
offensive to me as a spouse. I just want to get that on the
record.

Dr. GRATZER. I would add, it is not just about prevention,
though I fully agree with your comments on this. There is also
some element of people taking more responsibility for their
actions.

Ms. BERKLEY. What do you do with a patient, doctor, and I
know you are a psychiatrist, but my husband does all the
dialysis in Las Vegas, so that we know that smoking, obesity,
lack of exercise————-

Dr. GRATZER. Sure, incredible.

Ms. BERKLEY [continuing]. So patients are on the machine
for 3 hours. They get up, they light up a smoke and they go
grab McDonald's. Now, how responsible should that doctor be
because the patient is being irresponsible?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, it is a heartbreaker certainly in your
husband's field of work but so many health costs are in some
ways avoidable. Again, we have to be very clear. There are
people who are genetically endowed to develop certain diseases,
there are people who are just unlucky. On the other hand,
smoking is 100 percent avoidable. We are seeing in America an
obesity crisis, doubling of obesity rates over 25 years. And
the best evidence, it seems to me, it is just we are taking in
too many calories. I think part of that is a government
solution in terms of like school lunch programs, funding better
school lunches. I think part of that comes from the corporate
community. I am excited with Safeway and what they have managed
to do to better people's health. But part of it is also
culturally people have to take more responsibility. It should
not be societally acceptable to smoke and yet in a lot of ways,
it still remains somewhat glamorous.

Dr. YOUNG. I would like to compliment your summary. I am in
complete accord with several points you made, but to make the
point from our purpose being here, I think your goals would be
much more readily achieved in a single payer system with
improved access and for that reason, I commend you to consider
that option.

Ms. BERKLEY. Thank you.

Mr. STARK. Thank you. Ms. Schwartz, would you like to
inquire?

Ms. SCHWARTZ. Yes, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and
thank you panelists for your patience and your willingness to
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be here for a number of hours.

I think we have covered some ground here but on some of the
things——we get lost a little bit in some of the various
specific details we have been discussing and forget our larger
goals and how we are going to accomplish them. We are really
very committed, as the President has asked us, to contain the
rate of growth costs in health coverage and in health care,
both through the government and for businesses and for
families. And we know we can do that by some of the delivery
system reforms we have, some of the payment reforms we are
intending to——will be created in this way.

And we are also really clear about the fact that we want to
deal with access to health coverage. I do not know that you
would all agree that all Americans ought to have health
insurance. I think at least three of you would. I think one of
you would say, ~“Well, they are on their own, good luck. We
will give you some tax credits and go and see what you can
find."'

But one of the things that this draft bill does do very,
very clearly is to say that we are going to create a way to
help all Americans purchase affordable, meaningful health
insurance coverage. And there can be disputes about how we are
going to do that, but the idea here is that there are numbers
of Americans who have insurance that is not very meaningful. I
think, Ms. Pollitz, I would want you to speak about this. We
find particularly for small groups and for individuals buying
meaningful health insurance that is affordable, if you have a
preexisting condition now, if you are a small group that buys
insurance and I just talked to one businessowner who said their
rates just went up 40 percent from one year to the next. We
have all in this country seen our insurance premiums double in
the last 9 years. That is unsustainable for families. It is
unsustainable for businesses. And it is unsustainable for
government. So we believe we have to take action.

Now, one of the things we are going to do, in spite of what
the Republicans say, is to put a whole lot more Americans,
almost 50 million of them, out there purchasing health
insurance, private health insurance by and large. So I think
that insurers should step up to the plate and offer some
meaningful coverage. But we are going to change some of the
market rules because if we are going to help Americans buy
private health insurance, and we are, then we want to make sure
that they meet some rules.

And I would like you, Ms. Pollitz, if you would start with
some of the rules that we are going to change, preexisting
condition exclusions, you cannot do that anymore. You cannot
rate people based on gender. You cannot rate them based on
their health status. We will make some changes in age. We are
going to make it more affordable but also mean something. Now,
you had mentioned in your testimony initially, way back when,
earlier this morning, that one of the ways that you think we
could strengthen the legislation, even though there is language
in there now, is to make sure that a consumer, individual or
small business or bigger business, knows what they are buying.
When they are buying insurance, they know what they are buying.
And right now, that is also very, very difficult.

There was a report recently about a woman who thought
cancer care was covered. It turns out that the cancer care she
was getting was outpatient and what was covered was inpatient.
Now, there was no way of her knowing that when she read the
policy. So, unfortunately, she got cancer, she had health
insurance and it did not cover her care in the least expensive
way possible.

I will just give you one statistic, 61 percent of the 72
million working age adults who had problems paying medical
bills or paying off medical debt in 2007 were insured at the
time the care was provided. That is again unsustainable. We
know 50 percent of bankruptcies are due to medical debt.

So we are going to help people to be able to buy private
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insurance. Could you start by telling me what else you think we
ought to be doing? I do have a bill with Congresswoman Delauro
that we are advocating putting some of that language in this
bill that would make Americans feel more secure that when they
are buying private insurance or public insurance, that they
actually know what they are buying, they get what they are
paying for, and that we reduce the cost of administration of
private insurance companies now, just spending literally
millions and tens of millions of dollars to screen records to
make sure that they do not pay coverage. So could you just—I
know I went on probably more than my allowed but if you would
answer that and give us some information about what else you
are doing, how important you think it might be to be doing
this?

Ms. POLLITZ. I am happy to, and I will talk very fast. I
think it is definitely the case that health insurance today is
very complicated. Industry studies show that people do not
understand overwhelmingly how their coverage works and that
most would prefer to do anything, including work on their
income taxes, rather than try to read the insurance policy and
figure it out.

I think you can make health insurance more predictable and
more understandable for people by making it more standardized.
If there is coverage for hospitalization, it should cover the
whole hospital stay, not leave out the first 2 days. If there
is a deductible, that should mean a deductible. If there is an
out-of-pocket limit, that should actually limit your out-of-
pocket costs. You could have more standardization of terms.

Also, we have suggested a new kind of labeling system for
health insurance that I believe is included in the bill that
you referenced.

Ms. SCHWARTZ. It is a little bit like the way when you buy
a food product?

Ms. POLLITZ. Exactly.

Ms. SCHWARTZ. It is consistent.

Ms. POLLITZ. A coverage fact label, we would suggest that,
our methodology was to simulate what it costs and what the
claims are to have different illnesses and then have insurance
companies process those claims and show you exactly what would
be covered and what you would have to pay for the whole episode
of illness so that people could synthesize and see that.

Ms. SCHWARTZ. We will continue to work together. I thank
the Chairman for his indulgence.

Mr. TANNER [Presidingl. Thank you.

Mr. Davis.

Mr. DAVIS OF ILLINOIS. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
Listening to some of my colleagues would lead us to believe
that the only relevant part of this discussion is not to have a
public option included with our private system. I have heard a
great deal this morning about costs. I have not heard much
about service or quality of care. I have not heard much about
accountability, responsibility or the need for access for the
millions of individuals in our country who have no insurance at
all. And in many instances no place to go if they get sick.

Dr. Young, I want to commend you and my colleague,
Congressman Conyers, for your many years of long struggle and
sometimes suffering to try and push our country toward
understanding of what a single payer system would do.
Sometimes, I did not know whether you were pushing or leading,
but either way, you helped to get us where we are.

You have already told us that we have fallen short of the
goal with this tri-committee draft that I think has been a
tremendous effort led by our Chairman, Representative Rangel.
Given that we have this document that we have put together, and
I know that you are good at dual diagnoses and things like
that, what would you say were the part that you like best or
might be its strongest features?

Dr. YOUNG. Okay.

Mr. DAVIS OF ILLINOIS. And what would you say might be its
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weakest features?

Dr. YOUNG. Well, I naturally am pleased with those parts of
the bill that extend coverage to people now not getting it,
that is truism. The part I do not like is that it finds it
necessary to retain the private insurance system, which is the
heart of our present dilemma. I am well aware of the awesome,
real power the industry has, and I think I understand the
legislative process. But having said that, my criticism or
opposition to these other forms is not the purist point of
view, I do not have that. I have had too many life experiences
to have that view. It is that it will not work. And that I feel
that all of--both sides of the aisle with their criticisms and
suggestions have the same goal, but what is emerging is not a
practical arrangement. And it has already been said, and I will
echo it, the cost will sink not only the health economy but the
national economy.

And I am happy, you suggested and I will emphasize, that
the American people are increasingly aware of the desirability
of a national health insurance, treating health care as a human
right by society, emulate the achievements of other countries
with much lower costs. I mean not a little lower, starting the
highest competitor for cost, France, Switzerland and Germany,
spend one half per capita. So with all that money and our
American ingenuity and eliminating the unnecessary waste
associated with the private insurance system, we could have a
fabulous system and the country's mood, solidarity, confidence
in government would go up tremendously.

Mr. DAVIS OF ILLINOIS. Thank you very much. Ms. Pollitz,
let me ask you if I could, in some of our districts, 400
percent of the Federal poverty level seems like pretty high
income. Yet, you propose that subsidies be set at an even
higher level. Why would Congress need to subsidize health care
for a family earning $88,000 a year?

Ms. POLLITZ. Well, if the cost of that coverage is $12,000
or $13,000 a year, that takes a big bite out of the paycheck of
that family. And if the family head is my age, in their 50's,
the cost will be much higher than that because age rating is
provided for in this bill. So I think when you watch and set
your policy about affordability, you need to step away a little
bit from the optics that associate with this measure of the
poverty level. It is in many ways an artificial measure and way
too low for measuring the needs of families to pay for
anything. And really look at what is the cost of good health
care coverage and how much do you want families to have to pay
out-of-pocket for that if they do not have other subsidies?

Mr. DAVIS OF ILLINOIS. Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman, I
see that my time has expired but with your indulgence, could I
just ask Dr. Gratzer, when we talk about costs, do you have any
idea of how much of that cost is plowed back into the economy?
Let's say if we spend a dollar for health care, how much of
that goes back into the economy?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, you have asked a physician whether or
not he likes health spending, you are going to get a pretty
predictable response. And I think what you are hitting on is
the right question, which we cannot just look at costs, we have
to look at effect on lives. My wife's life has infinitely
improved by a procedure. People suffering from cancer are
infinitely improved by the technology we have available. It is
also true that to some extent it is good for an economy. One
must be careful though that we probably do waste money within
the system, and that is I think we would all agree getting
better value for our dollar is worthwhile.

But to turn around and say we spend 16 percent, we would be
economically better off spending 12 percent, I think is just
very simplistic and unfortunately too many economists seem to
fall in that trap.

Mr. DAVIS OF ILLINOIS. Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. TANNER. Mr. Heller, you are recognized.
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Mr. HELLER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And I want to thank
the panel for your patience. Running back and forth between the
forth, at least I get some exercise. Anyway, thank you very
much for being here, and I appreciate your comments.

One of the things that intrigues me as we go through this
conversation and one of the things that I would like to raise
is a question that I am constantly asked by my constituency
back in Nevada and that is what would happen if Members of
Congress had to live with the same health care system that
everybody else has to live by?

And I will assure you there is a great divide on this side
here, of us sitting in front of you and everybody else out here
in this room. There are people here in this room and in this
audience that do not have the health care options that Members
of Congress, whether it is the House or the Senate, have, and I
believe that if we are going to go forward with this exercise,
regardless of what plan ends up at the end of the day, that we
ought to, if we are intellectually honest, ought to require
Congress to live by those same provisions. Is there anybody on
this panel that disagrees with this?

[No response.]

Mr. HELLER. Having said that, and again I think that is
critical as we move forward in this debate is to make sure that
Members of Congress, as they move forward on this, understand
what their constituents have to live with.

Now, I want to go to you, Dr. Gratzer. In fact, I had a
question for Secretary Sebelius, who was sitting right where
you were a month or so ago, and I was talking about my
district. And this could be rural America as much as rural
Nevada, I have a very large district and talked about access to
health care and the cost, and my question to her is would a
public health care plan solve access and cost? Her response to
it was, "I do not think anyone is talking about a government-
run program.'' She also went on to say that, "'I think the goal
with this legislation is to have most Americans without health
coverage in a health insurance exchange run by the private
market to stabilize the current private market.''

So, doctor, based on the draft we have in front of us
today, I am pretty sure someone in Washington has a government-
run health care in mind. Do you think this bill reflects a
respect for the power of the private market as Secretary
Sebelius envisioned?

Dr. GRATZER. No. Would you like me to elaborate?

Mr. HELLER. Would you, please?

Dr. GRATZER. I was going to rest on the eloquence of my
response.

[Laughter.]

Dr. GRATZER. Again, I believe in competition, and I think
that we should be very mindful of the fact that the system
works well when we do have competition. The Federal Employee's
Health Benefit Plan has actually kept costs relative to other
types of health insurance down. I think most Members of
Congress are very pleased with the literally hundreds of
options they have available.

I belong to a think tank in New York, we have a choice of
exactly one plan. So I think there are things to learn from
that approach, but I also think we must be very cautious about
this concept of enhancing competition with a government plan.
The government plan is in fact price controlled. It will offer
substantially lower premiums than anyone else can offer because
it is paying a fraction of the amount, as Medicare presently
does.

Mr. HELLER. Sure, similar to what we have in Congress now
as Members?

Dr. GRATZER. And I think it will suck away from the private
sector. So I think one must be very cautious about a public
plan option. But I do think one can learn from what Members of
Congress have, that you have many options available and that is
useful, and the question is how do you get that to Americans
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who are too often available--have available just one choice of
plans?

Mr. HELLER. Doctor, I know that you have looked at health
care systems around the world, could you touch on survival
rates, point out some of the statistics that might help this
Committee, survival rates of patients in America and other
nations?

Dr. GRATZER. Sure, look, comparing one system to another is
enormously challenging and crude. Mr. Becerra, your colleague
for instance, infant mortality rates. Unfortunately, as you
know, a lot of health has to do with things other than health
care. Infant mortality statistics would be a wonderful example
of that. It turns out that in America the group with the best
health infant mortality rates are Hispanic Americans. They also
have the least access to health insurance and in fact are most
likely to birth outside of a hospital. I am not advocating
births outside of hospitals. What I am advocating and
suggesting is that one must be cautious. Other factors, drug
use, family structure, and so on has enormous weight.

So what are better ways of comparing systems than just
saying infant mortality statistics? I would suggest looking at
how people fair with different diseases, like cancer survival
rates. Lancet Oncology as an example, compared American
survival rates to European survival rates. Sixty-six percent
versus 44 percent survival rates over 5 years. American
medicine is second to none. We have problems here but do not
lose the good.

Mr. HELLER. Thank you very much. I know my time has run
out, but I just want to reiterate that I think it is critically
important that we make sure Members of Congress live by
whatever plan comes out of here. And I would challenge the
leadership on this Committee to see fit that the necessary
provisions are put into this bill so that Members of Congress
and our constituents live with the same health care programs
across this country.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I yield back.

Mr. STARK [Presiding]. Thank you. Mr. Etheridge, would you
like to inquire?

Mr. ETHERIDGE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me join the
others in thanking you for being willing to stay this long and
stay in your seats. I know it has been tough, so we appreciate
it.

There has been talk here about all the issues that we have
to deal with, and it is a complicated issue. Whether people
want to call it waste, fraud and abuse, whatever you want to
call it, it is savings within the system, and we have to get it
out because that will provide for more care, more quality care.
I cannot imagine any person sitting on this panel, or hopefully
not any Member of Congress, would be opposed to doing that. So
I hope this bill is a start in that direction.

It is a draft, it is not perfect. It probably will not be
perfect after it gets through the House and through the Senate,
but I happen to remember something that Confucius said, he
said, "~ "The longest journey starts with the first step,'' and
if you are always fussing about where you can go, you will
never get anywhere, so you have to get started. And so at least
the process has started and the dialogue is in place.

And I think the President is right saying that this is the
time to talk about it. He said that if you like the plan you
got, you keep it, you choose your own doctor, you do that and
that the timing is right. I think the quality of care is a
critical issue and you only worry about that if you get sick.
If you are not sick, you do not need a hospital, do not need an
insurance plan and that is why young people a lot of times do
not get one. They choose not to. And the quality care, access
to care and certain affordability, and these are some of the
issues we are talking about.

Let me just tell you a quick little situation I bumped into
Saturday with a friend. I went up to pick up some posts, I was
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doing some work on the farm, and this guy was selling them. And
I looked at him and I said--he said, "~ “Well, I don't feel
well.'' And I said, " “What is your problem?'' He said, "'I
really need to go and have some medical attention. Number one,
I don't have insurance.'' He owned his farm, but he did not
make enough money to afford health insurance, he could not
afford to have the kind of care he needed. So as any other
Member of Congress would do, he happened to be in my district,
we called, we tried to find care, and tried to link him up with
people who do it, but a lot of that happens. The point is that
ought not be the way people have to get care. So my question is
that if you have care in a lot of cases, and in some places
depending on where you are, if you live in a rural area, you
are less likely to have access as you have already heard
because primary care is very difficult, people have figured out
the way we reimburse, and we have to change that, and I hope we
do it in this legislation.

But let me ask a question to you, Ms. Pollitz, because, as
you know, insurers, and you mentioned this earlier in your
testimony or in answer to a question, rescinding health
insurance policies if the policyholder has lied or concealed
information from his or her——on his or her application. Okay,
we understand that, that makes sense. But in a number of cases,
in testimony even before this——not before this Committee but
before other Committees, on June 17th, it was reported that
three major insurance groups went before a Committee and
admitted and said they were going to keep doing it for people
because they were sick. It reminds me if I have fire insurance
and my house burns down, I expect the insurance company to pay
it unless I set it on fire myself. And what they are saying is
if you have a fire, you can pay your fire insurance as long as
you do not have a fire. But if you have a fire, you are out of
luck because we are going to cancel your plan or you are going
to court. Well, we are saying the same thing with insurance,
aren't we? Isn't that the same kind of thing we are talking
about, if you get sick and you are really in bad shape, you
have a policy, where you have a condition that stretches out,
you have cancer, you have liver disease, you have a number of
things, that bothers me. I don't know if we can fix it all but
certainly——if you are going to be in the business of insuring,
if you only choose people that are healthy, you are going to
make money and you are not going to pay much out.

I would be interested in—I know these people are smart, I
want them to make money, but at the same time I don't want them
to discriminate against sick people, especially if they are
people I represent.

Ms. POLLITZ. You are absolutely right, Congressman, and I
was at the hearing, at the table with the executives when they
said they would not cease to practice. And Mr. Barton, the
Republican leader, said to them, "“You do not have a friend in
this room.'' One of the witnesses was a constituent of his who
was a nurse, she had purchased a policy, she had paid her
premiums, she was diagnosed with cancer, and at one point
investigated, re-investigated—-everything that they had
investigated previously when she applied, they investigated
again with a fine-tooth comb and they found that she had failed
to disclose a visit to a dermatologist for what turned out to
be acne and on that basis they took her policy away. And Mr.
Barton fought them until they put it back. And there were other
witnesses with similar stories and it is a common practice.

The executives testified that they maintain lists of as
many as 1,000 to 2,000 different conditions and as soon as a
claim comes in on one of those conditions for a new
policyholder, that will trigger the post-claims underwriting
process.

And I think it is important that the draft legislation
makes extra clear, I think it is already illegal under current
legal, but makes extra clear that policy rescission would not
be permitted any longer.
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Mr. ETHERIDGE. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I yield
back.

Mr. STARK. Mr. Yarmuth.

Mr. YARMUTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I hate to spend any
of my time on this subject but we now have had four votes since
we convened this hearing this morning. All four were motions by
the Minority to adjourn the House in a dilatory effort to just
gum up the works so that we cannot accomplish what we are
trying to do for the American people. I was not here when we
were in the Minority, maybe my party did the same thing, but I
consider it, and I know many of my colleagues and the
Republicans consider it disrespectful to the American people.
So I hope who is watching would take the opportunity to call
their Representative and urge the Republican leadership to let
us get about the business of the American people.

Now, with that being said, Dr. Gratzer, how many countries
are there in the world?

Dr. GRATZER. Oh, if you looked at my geography marks back
in high school, you would know I am not———-

Mr. YARMUTH. About 190, give or take one or two. How many
of those countries have some kind of a health plan, do you
know? They said you studied these.

Dr. GRATZER. Well, I have studied Western Europe and the
United States and Canada, I could not comment on Africa and
Asia.

Mr. YARMUTH. Okay, well, let's just limit our discussion to
the industrialized nations. How many of the industrialized
nations in the world have some form of government single payer
health care?

Dr. GRATZER. Many.

Mr. YARMUTH. Most, if not all but this country, is that
correct? Are you aware of any that do not?

Dr. GRATZER. Well, it depends on what you mean by single
payer. I mean if you think if you take it more broadly to
include social insurance, all except the United States.

Mr. YARMUTH. Thank you, that was the answer I was looking
for.

Dr. GRATZER. There you go.

Mr. YARMUTH. Are there instances in which government single
payer health care co-exists with private insurance?

Dr. GRATZER. Yes, in most countries. Canada would be
exceptional.

Mr. YARMUTH. Canada is the exception, so what you and other
opponents of the public option have chose to do is single out
Canada as the one example, even though it is an outlier of the
supposed plans that we are trying to model. Is there anything
else that we have modeled other than hockey that we have tried
to take from the Canadians?

Dr. GRATZER. I would point out that while you have tried to
model hockey———-—

Mr. YARMUTH. We have tried to model hockey.

Dr. GRATZER [continuing]. Canadians still have the
advantage.

Mr. YARMUTH. I concede that.

Dr. GRATZER. Well, I was going to———-

Mr. YARMUTH. No———-

Dr. GRATZER [continuing]. But hold on a second, sir. I
think it is important to draw lessons, and I see your point
that Canada is a bit of an outlier. I would point out though if
you look at countries like Britain or Sweden, while they have
the option of private insurance, those markets remain
incredibly small because they got crowded out and the
problems——-—

Mr. YARMUTH. What about Germany?

Dr. GRATZER. Germany has a social insurance policy that is
tightly regulated by the government. As you know, France has a
similar one.

Mr. YARMUTH. But there is also a private insurance market,
health insurance market in Germany, isn't there?
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Dr. GRATZER. And in Canada, I should point out, you can opt
out as well. You cannot buy private insurance but you can opt
out and buy private service.

Mr. YARMUTH. So the point is we have the opportunity to
follow any number of models, to do none of them, to create
something that is distinctly and uniquely American, don't we?

Dr. GRATZER. I think that that would be a good thing, but I
would be cautious about————-

Mr. YARMUTH. I am glad you———-

Dr. GRATZER [continuing]. In Washington given the way
government expansion has gone in other countries.

Mr. YARMUTH. I am glad you applaud our effort. Now, I want
to get to this issue of 120 million people who would move from
a private plan to a public option supposedly, the Lewin Report.
Was the Lewin Report based on an analysis of the discussion
draft that we have before us now? Does anybody want to comment,
Dr. Holahan?

Mr. HOLAHAN. Yes, I would. No, it was done before this
draft came out obviously, but there were a lot of assumptions
in there that got them that high a number. There were no
exchanges. They made a big assumption about the difference in
administrative costs. They assumed that the plan would pay
Medicare rates as opposed to Medicare plus something.

And there were some other issues that I cannot recall, but
it was——oh, one of the things that I think was very important
is that they assumed the private system would not respond at
all to competition from the public.

Mr. YARMUTH. Right, so it is fair to say that that analysis
and that projection has nothing to do with the document that is
before us?

Mr. HOLAHAN. It does not.

Mr. YARMUTH. When the representative from the Lewin Group